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Attached documents

1.

An economic paper as at November 30, 2022, regarding the valuation of the HSBC Tower, which is held by Property &
Building Corp. Ltd. (“Property & Building”), is included by way of reference to the aforementioned paper, which is
attached to the financial statements of Property & Building as at December 31, 2022, which were reported and published
on March 26, 2023 (reference number 2023-01-027655).

Economic paper as at March 8, 2022, regarding the purchase price allocation (PPA) of Gav-Yam shares, is included by
way of reference to the aforementioned paper, which is attached to Property & Building’s financial statements as at
December 31, 2022, which it reported and published on March 26, 2023 (reference number 2023-01- 027655). Also
attached are details regarding this paper in accordance with Regulation 8(B) of the Securities Regulations.

Economic paper as at December 31, 2022, in connection with an impairment test with respect to the goodwill attributed
to Gav-Yam, is included by way of reference to the aforementioned paper, which is attached to Property & Building’s
financial statements as at December 31, 2022, which it reported and published on March 26, 2023 (reference number
2023-01- 027655). Also attached are details regarding this paper in accordance with Regulation 8(B) of the Securities
Regulations.

Data regarding the Company’s liabilities are attached to these financial statements, in accordance with Regulation 38E of
the Securities Regulations, is included by way of reference to the aforementioned data which are included in the report
regarding the corporation’s liabilities, which was published on March 26, 2023 (reference number 2023-01-027556).
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Auditors’ Report
To the Shareholders of
Discount Investment Corporation Ltd.

We have audited the attached consolidated statements of financial position of Discount Investment Corporation
Ltd. (hereinafter: the “Company”) as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, as well as the consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2022. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors and
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements, based on our audit.

We have not audited the financial statements of consolidated companies, including companies whose operations
were discontinued, and whose assets as included in the consolidation constituted approximately 6% and
approximately 9% of total consolidated assets as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and whose income
as included in the consolidation constituted approximately 18%, approximately 28% and approximately 28% of
total consolidated income for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. We have also not
audited the financial statements of investee companies accounted by the equity method, including companies
whose operations were discontinued, the investment in which amounted to approximately NIS 182 million and
approximately NIS 282 million as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and where the Company’s share
in their net losses amounted to approximately NIS 57 million, approximately NIS 32 million and approximately
NIS 33 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The financial statements of
those companies were audited by other auditors, whose reports were presented to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
refers to the amounts included in respect of those companies, is based on the reports provided by the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Israel, including standards set
forth in the Auditors’ Regulations (Auditor’s Mode of Performance), 5733-1973. According to these standards,
we are required to plan and conduct the audit in order to obtain a reasonable measure of assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of any material misrepresentation. Performing an audit includes testing, on a
sample basis, the evidence provided to support the amounts and information presented in the financial statements.
An audit also includes conducting an evaluation of the accounting principles used and of the significant estimates
made by the Company’s management, as well as an evaluation of the overall adequacy of presentation in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit, and the reports provided by the other auditors, provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and on the reports provided by other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company and of
its consolidated companies as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and their operating results, changes in equity and
cash flows for each of the three years ended on December 31, 2022, in accordance with international financial
reporting standards (IFRS) and the provisions of the Securities Regulations (Yearly Financial Statements), 5770-
2010.

We have also audited the Company’s pro forma consolidated statements of income for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2022, in connection with the transaction involving the acquisition of Gav-Yam,
which are included in Note 33 to the consolidated reports (hereinafter: the “Pro Forma Reports™). These pro forma
reports are the responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors and management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these pro forma reports, based on our audit.

We have not audited the financial statements of consolidated companies, including companies whose operations
were discontinued, whose income as included in the consolidation constituted approximately 19%, approximately
21% and approximately 27% of total consolidated pro forma income in each of the years ended December 31,
2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. We have also not audited the financial statements of equity accounted
investees, including companies whose operations were discontinued, where the Company’s share in their net
losses, as included in the pro forma reports, amounted to approximately NIS 57 million and approximately NIS 30
million for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2020, respectively. The financial statements of those
companies were audited by other auditors, whose reports were presented to us, and our opinion, insofar as it refers
to the amounts included in respect of those companies, is based on the reports provided by the other auditors.

. Kesselman & Kesselman, Haifa Scientific Industries Center, Building 25, P.O. Box 15084, Haifa 3190500, Israel
Telephone: +972-4-8605000, Fax: +972-4-8605001, www.pwc.com/il
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We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Israel, including standards set
forth in the Auditors” Regulations (Auditor’s Mode of Performance), 5733-1973. According to these standards,
we are required to plan and conduct the audit in order to obtain a reasonable measure of assurance about whether
the pro forma reports are free of any material misrepresentation. Performing an audit includes testing, on a sample
basis, the evidence provided to support the amounts and information presented in the pro forma reports. An audit
also includes conducting an evaluation of the accounting principles used and of the significant estimates made by
the Company’s management, as well as an evaluation of the overall adequacy of presentation in the pro forma
reports. We believe that our audit, and the reports provided by the other auditors, provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and on the reports provided by other auditors, the pro forma reports referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the pro forma operating results of the Company and of its consolidated
companies in each of the three years during the period ended December 31, 2022, in accordance with the provisions
of Regulation 9A of the Securities Regulations (Periodic and Immediate Reports), 5730-1970, based on the
assumptions specified in Note 33.

We have also audited, in accordance with Auditing Standard (Israel) 911 of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in Israel, “Audit of Internal Controls over Financial Reporting”, internal controls over financial
reporting in the Company as at December 31, 2022, and our report dated March 26, 2023 includes an unqualified
opinion regarding the effective existence of those controls.

Key audit matters

The key audit matters specified below are the matters which were communicated, or which were required for
communication, to the Company’s Board of Directors, and which, in our professional judgment, were most
significant in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current period. These matters include, inter
alia, any matter which: (1) pertains, or may pertain, to significant sections or disclosures in the financial statements,
and (2) where our judgment regarding the matter was particularly challenging, subjective or complex. These
matters were addressed in our audit and in the formulation of our opinion regarding the consolidated financial
statements in their entirety. The communication of the following matters does not change our opinion regarding
the consolidated financial statements in their entirety, and we are not providing herein a separate opinion on these
matters, or on the sections or disclosures to which they pertain.

Fair value of investment property

As described in Notes 2F and 6 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company initially measures
investment property at cost, and in subsequent periods, at fair value. Investment property under construction is
also measured at fair value, beginning from the date when its fair value is reliably measurable. The initial
consolidation of Gav-Yam Bayside Land Corporation Ltd. (hereinafter: “Gav-Yam”) also included the recognition
of Gav-Yam’s investment property and investment property under construction, according to their fair values as
at that date. Changes in fair value are carried to the statement of income.

The balance of investment property and investment property under construction as at December 31, 2022 amounted
to approximately NIS 12,552 million. The increase in the fair value of investment property for the year ended
December 31, 2022 amounted to approximately NIS 1,096 million. Additionally, the balance of assets of assets of
disposal groups held for sale as at December 31, 2022 included investment property in the amount of
approximately NIS 2,534 million, and loss from discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2022
included a decrease in fair value of investment property in the amount of approximately NIS 404 million.

The fair value measurement of investment property and investment property under construction (hereinafter:
“Investment Property”) is determined by independent valuers. The fair value of rental properties was estimated
using the income approach, while the fair value of available land lots was estimated using the comparison
approach.

" Kesselman & Kesselman, Haifa Scientific Industries Center, Building 25, P.O. Box 15084, Haifa 3190500, Israel
Telephone: +972-4-8605000, Fax: +972-4-8605001, www.pwc.com/il
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Main estimates used to calculate the fair value of investment property

As stated above, the fair value of rental properties under investment property was estimated using the income
approach, based on the net annual cash flows, discounted by a discount rate which reflects the specific risks
associated therewith. When determining the fair value of investment property, the Company uses observable
market inputs and indications of the property’s price, as much as possible. However, the determination of fair
value is also based on significant estimates involving uncertainty, and on subjective estimates which are not
observable on the market (level 3), such as the capitalization rates and market values of rent payments, which are
based on professional publications in the relevant markets, if available, and on comparison to similar transactions,
with the required adjustments. Additionally, when rental agreements effectively exist where the payments with
respect to them are different from appropriate rent, adjustments are implemented in order to reflect the actual rent
payments during the period of the agreement. The valuations take into account the types of lessees who are actually
occupying the leased property, or who are responsible for fulfilling the rental obligations, or those who may be in
the leased property after the rental of an available property, and the remaining economic lifetime of the property,
in the cases where those parameters are relevant. The market value of rental figures includes a wide range, in all
areas and all uses, and was due, inter alia, to the variability in the quality, age and finishing level of the various
leased properties.

Investment property under construction is presented at fair value beginning on the date when the fair value is
reliably measurable. The valuation is based on the estimated fair value of the investment property after its
construction has been completed, less the present value of the estimated construction costs which are expected to
arise for the purpose of completing it, while taking into account the capitalization rate, which is adjusted with
respect to the property’s relevant risks and characteristics, and the timing of the completion of construction.

Changes in these estimates and assumptions could significantly affect the values of the investment properties
which are presented in the Company’s financial statements.

We identified the estimates and assumptions of management which are used when measuring the fair value of
investment property as a key audit matter.

Auditing the fair value of investment property requires judgment on the part of the auditor, in order to evaluate the
way in which management substantiated the adequacy of the assumptions and estimates which were used when
measuring the fair value of investment property.

Audit procedures conducted in respect of key audit matters
Presented below are the main procedures we conducted in connection with this key matter as part of our audit:

e  Understanding the internal control environment with respect to calculating the fair value of investment
property and auditing the effectiveness of internal controls associated with determining its amount

e  Evaluating the completeness and accuracy of the information and data which are used in the fair value
determination model

e  Reviewing the chosen methodology of fair value determination, and verifying whether it corresponds to the
property’s characteristics

e  Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimates which were chosen by management in accordance with
common practice and market data, including taking into account current transactions in the market and
sectoral surveys

e  Evaluating the adequacy of application of the assumptions used in the calculation of fair value, and evaluating
the calculations

e Accompaniment of an expert appraiser.

" Kesselman & Kesselman, Haifa Scientific Industries Center, Building 25, P.O. Box 15084, Haifa 3190500, Israel
Telephone: +972-4-8605000, Fax: +972-4-8605001, www.pwc.com/il
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Impairment test of goodwill attributed to Gav-Yam

As described in Notes 20 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the balance of goodwill attributed to Gav
Yam as at December 31, 2022 amounted to approximately NIS 4,380 million (after deducting impairment loss in
the amount of approximately NIS 469 million, which was carried to the statements of income in 2022).

As described in the notes,

an impairment test of the cash generating unit to which goodwill was allocated is conducted once per year, and
whenever any signs of the unit’s impairment exist, by comparing the unit’s book value, including goodwill, to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of either value in use or fair value less costs to sell. The process of testing
for impairment the cash generating unit to which the goodwill was allocated is based on significant estimates
involving uncertainty, and on subjective estimates. Changes in these estimates or approximations could
significantly affect the balance of goodwill which is presented in the Company’s financial statements.

Main estimates used in the impairment test of goodwill

When calculating the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which goodwill was allocated by the
Company, judgment is applied, mostly in the determination of the future cash flows which are projected to arise
from the unit, the long-term growth rate, and the real discount rate.

We identified the estimates which serve as the basis for the impairment test of goodwill attributed to Gav-Yam
as a key audit matter.

Auditing an impairment test of goodwill requires judgment on the part of the auditor, as well as knowledge and
experience in order to evaluate the reasonableness of the assumptions and data which were used by management
when determining the estimated recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill was
allocated.

Audit procedures conducted in respect of key audit matters

Presented below are the main procedures we conducted in connection with this key matter as part of our audit:

e  Understanding the internal control environment pertaining to the impairment test of goodwill and auditing
the effectiveness of internal controls associated with the determination of the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit

e  Reviewing the methodology used in the determination of the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit,
and verifying whether it corresponds to its characteristics

e  Evaluating the completeness and accuracy of the information and data which are used to in the calculation of
the recoverable amount

e  Evaluating the reasonableness of management’s assumptions

e  Evaluating the adequacy of application of the assumptions used in the calculation of the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit, and evaluating the calculations

e Accompaniment of valuation experts.

Haifa, Kesselman & Kesselman
March 26, 2023 Certified Public Accountants
A member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited

" Kesselman & Kesselman, Haifa Scientific Industries Center, Building 25, P.O. Box 15084, Haifa 3190500, Israel
Telephone: +972-4-8605000, Fax: +972-4-8605001, www.pwc.com/il



DIC

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

As at December 31

20220 2021@
Note NIS millions
Non-current assets
Investments in investee companies accounted by the
equity method 3 406 3,167
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss 337 194
Loans, deposits, restricted deposits and debit balances 205 117
Right-of-use assets 7 209 869
Fixed assets 5 395 1,729
Investment property 6 12,552 23
Long term trade receivables 8 - 158
Real estate inventory 65 24
Deferred expenses 85 423
Deferred tax assets 30.B. 23 6
Intangible assets 9 4,402 2,640
18,679 9,350
Current assets
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss 4 163 399
Deposits and pledged and restricted deposits 10 1,225 300
Other receivables and debit balances 379 327
Current tax assets 26 20
Trade receivables and other income receivable 8 157 1,082
Inventory 11 160 272
Inventory of buildings for sale 41 65
Assets of disposal groups held for sale 12 10,442 3,695
Cash and cash equivalents 13 2,090 2,740
14,683 8,900
Total assets 33,362 18,250

(1) Includes data regarding Gav-Yam, which was initially consolidated on March 8, 2022, see Note 3.F.1.A. below.
(2) Including the activity of Cellcom, which is presented in 2022 as assets of disposal groups under current assets, see Note
12.B.2. below.

The accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated interim financial statements are an integral part hereof.
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position (Cont.)

As at December 31

20220 2021@
Note NIS millions
Capital
Share capital 14 810 810
Capital reserves 4,348 4,029
Accumulated losses (2,798) (3,321)
Capital attributable to owners of the Company 2,360 1,518
Non-controlling interests 3.D. 5,900 2,856
8,260 4,374
Non-current liabilities
Debentures 15 10,853 7,534
Loans from banks and other financial liabilities 15 415 147
Lease liabilities 7 97 589
Provisions 16 - 40
Deferred tax liabilities 30.B. 1,850 566
Employee benefits 17 7 24
Other non-financial liabilities 28 13
13,250 8,913
Current liabilities
Current maturities of debentures 15 2,762 1,422
Credit from banking corporations and current
maturities of loans from banks and others 15 1,684 268
Current maturities of lease liabilities 7 19 208
Other payables and credit balances 18 713 686
Trade payables 19 143 838
Derivatives - 4
Current tax liabilities 37 33
Provisions 16 10 116
Liabilities of disposal groups classified as held for
sale 12 6,484 1,388
11,852 4,963
Total capital and liabilities 33,362 18,250
Tzachi Nachmias Nataly Mishan-Zakai Baruch Itzchak
Chairman of the Board General Manager CFO

(1) Includes data regarding Gav-Yam, which was initially consolidated on March 8, 2022, see Note 3.F.1.A. below.
(2) Including the activity of Cellcom, which is presented in 2022 as liabilities of disposal groups held for sale, under current
liabilities, see Note 12.B.2. below.

Approval date of the financial statements: March 26, 2023

The accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated interim financial statements are an integral part hereof.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

For the year ended December 31

20220 2021@ 2020
Note NIS millions
Income
Sales and services 23 2,176 1,270 1,156

The Group’s share in the net profit of

investee companies accounted by the

equity method, net 24 - 344 -
Profit from realization and increase in the

value of investments and assets, and

dividends 25.A 1,183 175 63

Increase in fair value of investment
property, net 6.C. 1,096 592 9
Other income 25.C. 42 190 -
Finance income 26.A 100 113 23
4,597 2,684 1,251

Expenses

Cost of sales and services 27 1,370 1,086 992
Research and development expenses 4 4 13
Selling and marketing expenses 28 38 23 20
General and administrative expenses 29 180 161 196

The Group’s share in the loss of investee
companies accounted by the equity

method, net 24 31 - 1
Loss from realization, impairment, and
write-down of investments and assets 25.B 551 41 113
Other expenses 8 14 -
Finance expenses 26.B 694 475 537
2,876 1,804 1,872
Profit (loss) before taxes on income 1,721 880 (621)
Income tax expenses 30 (290) (144) (19)
Profit (loss) from continuing operations 1,431 736 (640)
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations,
after tax 12 19 (69) (157)
Net profit (loss) for the year 1,450 667 (797)
Net profit (loss) attributable to:
The Company’s owners 520 266 (555)
Non-controlling interests 930 401 (242)
1,450 667 (797)
NIS NIS NIS
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
attributed to the Company’s owners 14.H.
From continuing operations 3.8 2.2 (3.6)
From discontinued operations (0.2) (0.3) (0.3)

37 1.9 (3.9)

(1) Includes data regarding Gav-Yam, which was initially consolidated on March 8, 2022, see Note 3.F.1.A. below.
(2) Adjusted retrospectively due to the presentation of the Cellcom operation under discontinued operations, see Note 12.B.2. below.

The accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated interim financial statements are an integral part hereof.
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Consolidated Statements of Other Comprehensive Income

Net income (loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income (loss) items which will not
be transferred to profit and loss, net of tax
Revaluation of right-of-use asset which was transferred to
investment property

Actuarial gains (losses) in defined benefit plan

Total other comprehensive income (loss) which will not
be transferred to profit and loss

Other comprehensive income (loss) items after initial
recognition under comprehensive income which have
been transferred or will be transferred to profit and
loss, net of tax
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign
operations

Net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging that was
charged to profit or loss

Net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging which
was carried to the cost of the hedged item

The Group’s share in other comprehensive income (loss)
with respect to investee companies accounted by the
equity method

Total other comprehensive income (loss) after initial
recognition under comprehensive income which has
been transferred or will be transferred to profit and
loss

Total other comprehensive income (loss) for the year,
net of tax

Total net income (loss) for the year

Attributable to:
The Company’s owners
Non-controlling interests

Net income (loss) for the year

Net income (loss) for the year attributed to owners of the
Company, due to:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

For the year ended December 31

2022 2021 2020
NIS millions

1,450 667 (797)
3 - -

4 2) 2

7 2) 2
153 (58) (104)
1 2 -

- - 2

172 5 (17)
326 (51) (123)
333 (53) (121)
1,783 614 (918)
724 239 (639)
1,059 375 (279)
1,783 614 (918)
672 307 (529)®
52 (68)® (110)®
724 239 (639)

(1) Adjusted retrospectively due to the presentation of the Cellcom operation under discontinued operations, see Note 12.B.2.

below.

The accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated interim financial statements are an integral part hereof.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

For the year ended December 31, 2022

Balance as at January 1, 2022

Net income for the period

Other comprehensive income for the
period

Transactions with owners carried
directly to equity, investments of
owners and distributions to owners

Dividend to non-controlling interests

Consolidation of Gav-Yam (see Note
3.F.1.A. below)

Changes in interests in consolidated
companies®

Share-based payments given by the
Company

Share-based payments given by
consolidated companies

Balance as at December 31, 2022

(1)  Including, inter alia, the purchase of approximately 37.22% of Gav Yam’s issued share capital, see Note 3.F.1.A.1. below. below, and the sale of approximately 9.9% of Cellcom’s issued and paid-up share capital,

see Note 12.B.2.B. below.

Attributable to the Company’s owners

Reserves with

respect to
Reserves with available-for-
respect to sale financial Total capital
transactions Reserves assets through attributable
with non- from other Revaluati  Controlling to the Non-
Share Premium controlling translation comprehensive on shareholders  Treasury Accumul  Company’s | controlling Total
capital on shares interests differences income reserves reserve shares ated loss owners interests capital
NIS millions
810 4,449 110 (417) (2) - 4 (115)  (3,321) 1,518 2,856 4,374
- - - - - - - - 520 520 930 1,450
- - - 199 - 3 - - 2 204 129 333
- - - - - - - - - - (189) (189)
- - - - - - - - - - 4,983 4,983
- - 117 - - - - - - 117 (2,841) (2,724)
- - - - - - - - 1 1 - 1
- - - - - - - - - - 32 32
810 4,449 227 (218) 2) 3 4 (115)  (2,798) 2,360 5,900 8,260

The accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated interim financial statements are an integral part hereof.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (Cont.)

For the year ended December 31,
2021

Balance as at January 1, 2021
Net income for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the
year

Transactions with owners carried
directly to equity, investments
of owners and distributions to
owners

Dividend to non-controlling
interests

Deconsolidation of Ispro

Changes in interests in consolidated
companies®

Share-based payments given by
consolidated companies

Balance as at December 31, 2021

(1) Includes, inter alia, an issuance of shares to non-controlling interests in a consolidated company, and an acquisition as part of an issuance in a consolidated company.

Attributable to the Company’s owners

Reserves with

respect to
Reserves with available-for- Total
respect to sale financial capital
transactions Reserves assets through attributable
with non- from other Revaluati Controlling to the Non-
Share Premium controlling translation  Hedging comprehensive on shareholders  Treasury Accumul Company’s | controlling Total
capital on shares interests differences  reserves income reserves reserve shares ated loss owners interests capital
NIS millions
810 4,449 69 (397) 1) ) 68 4 (115)  (3,654) 1,231 2,079 3,310
- - - - - - - - 266 266 401 667
- - 27) 1 - - - - 1) (27) (26) (53)
- - - - - - - - - - (13) (13)
- - - - - (68) - - 68 - - -
- - 41 7 - - - - - - 48 395 443
- - - - - - - - - - 20 20
810 4,449 110 (417) - 2) - 4 (115) (3,321) 1,518 2,856 4,374

The accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated interim financial statements are an integral part hereof.
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DIC

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (Cont.)

For the year ended December 31,
2020

Balance as at January 1, 2020
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
(loss) for the year

Transactions with owners carried
directly to equity, investments
of owners and distributions to
owners

Dividend to non-controlling
interests

Deconsolidation of Pocared due to
loss of control

Consolidation of Mehadrin due to
rise to control

Changes in interests in consolidated
companies®

Share-based payments given by the
Company

Share-based payments given by
consolidated companies

Reserve from transactions with
controlling shareholders

Balance as at December 31, 2020

Attributable to the Company’s owners

Reserves with

respect to
Reserves with available-for-
respect to sale financial Total capital
transactions Reserves assets through attributable
with non- from other Revaluati  Controlling to the Non-
Share Premium controlling translation Hedging  comprehensive on shareholders ~ Treasury Accumul  Company’s controlling Total
capital on shares interests differences reserves income reserves reserve shares ated loss owners interests capital
NIS millions
810 4,449 15 (293) (2) (2) 63 3 (115)  (3,104) 1,824 2,067 3,891
- - - - - - - - - (555) (555) (242) (797)
- - - (86) 1 - - - - 1 (84) (37) (121)
- - - - - - - - - - - (52) (52)
- - - - - - - - - - - (13) (13)
- - - - - - - - - - - 387 387
- - 54 (18) - - 5 - - - 41 (55) (14)
- - - - - - - - - 4 4 - 4
- - - - - - - - - - - 24 24
- - - - - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
810 4,449 69 (397) 1) (2) 68 4 (115)  (3,654) 1,231 2,079 3,310

(1) Includes, inter alia, effects due to the exercise of options by the Company and by non-controlling interests in a consolidated company, issuances of options to non-controlling interests in a consolidated company, and effects due
to the expiration and exercise of share-based payment instruments in consolidated companies.

The accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated interim financial statements are an integral part hereof.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31

20220 2021@ 2020®
NIS millions
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit (loss) for the year 1,450 667 (797)
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations, after tax (19) 69 157
Profit (loss) from continuing operations 1431 736 (640)
Adjustments:
The Group’s share in the loss (profit) of investee companies accounted by the equity
method, net 31 (344) 1
Received dividends (including from other investments) 187 82 85
Realization losses (profits), decrease (increase) and write-downs, net, of investments,
assets and dividends (632) (134) 50
Profit from sale of option and land restoration (40) (171) -
Increase in fair value of investment property, net (1,096) (592) 9)
Depreciation and amortization 65 61 57
Financing costs, net 594 362 514
Income tax expenses, net 290 144 19
Income tax paid, net (142) 1) (24)
Share-based payment expenses 9 5 8
(734) (588) 701
Changes in other balance sheet items
Decrease (increase) in other receivables and debit balances (including long-term
amounts) 8 2 1
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables (including long term amounts) 7 (43) 77
Decrease (increase) in inventory (including long term amounts) 44 (1) 20
Increase (decrease) in trade payables 31 4 (64)
Decrease in other payables and credit balances, provisions and other liabilities
(including long term amounts) (35) (33) (45)
55 (79) (11)
Net cash from continuing operating activities 752 69 50
Net cash from discontinued operating activities 1,195 1,205 1,175
Net cash from operating activities 1,947 1,274 1,225
Cash flows for investing activities
Long term deposits loans which were given - (29) (4)
Consideration from the realization of loans which were given and long term deposits 9 9 10
Decrease (increase) in pledged and restricted deposits, net @) (94) 21
Current investments, loans and short term deposits, net (526) (114) 1,055
Investments and loans, net, in investee companies accounted by the equity method (270) (1,009) (39)
Non-current investments (126) 17) (12)
Investments in investment property and in fixed assets (821) (16) (24)
Investments in intangible and other assets (11) (20) (12)
Change in cash due to the initial consolidation of subsidiaries 1,204® 4) 101
Consideration from the realization of consolidated companies, net of cash spent within
the framework of their deconsolidation - 658 (2)
Receipts from realization of non-current investments, including dividend from the
realization 552 126 371
Receipts from realization of investment property, sale of option and land restoration,
fixed assets and other assets 630 329 173
Taxes paid, net, with respect to investment property, sale of option and land restoration,
fixed assets and other assets (18) (50) (26)
Interest received 41 15 21
Net cash (used in) from continuing investing activities 657 (216) 1,633
Net cash (used in) from discontinued investing activities (774) (225) 431
Net cash (used in) from investing activities (117) (441) 2,064

Includes data regarding Gav-Yam, which was initially consolidated on March 8, 2022, see Note 3.F.1.A. below.
(1) Adjusted retrospectively due to the presentation of the Cellcom operation under discontinued operations, see Note 12.B.2. below.
(2) For details regarding the initial consolidation of Gav-Yam, see Note 3.A.1.A. below.

The accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated interim financial statements are an integral part hereof.
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DIC

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Cont.)

For the year ended December 31

20220 2021@ 2020@
NIS millions

Cash flows for financing activities
Non-current financial liabilities received 3,000 63 78
Repayment of non-current financial liabilities (1,153) (1,113) (1,028)
Interest paid (351) (345) (419)
Repayment of lease liabilities (29) (28) (24)
Early redemption of debentures - - (110)
Issuance of interests in consolidated companies to non-

controlling interests - 398 -
Current financial liabilities, net 42 45 3
Receipts, including exercised share options, from non-

controlling interests in consolidated companies - 27 -
Acquisition of shares in consolidated companies from

non-controlling interests (3,035)® 3) (90)
Dividend to non-controlling interests in consolidated

companies (124) (16) (50)
Payments with respect to the settlement of derivatives (34) - -
Net cash used in continuing financing activities (1,684) (972) (1,640)
Net cash used in discontinued financing activities (16) (1,014) (416)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,700) (1,986) (2,056)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from
continuing operations (275) (1,119) 43
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from

discontinued operations 405 (34) 1,190
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents from

continuing operations and discontinued operations 130 (1,153) 1,233
Balance of cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

year 2,740 3,921 2,812
Effects of fluctuations in exchange rates on balances of

cash and cash equivalents 37 (20) (98)
Change in the balance of cash and cash equivalents

presented under assets of disposal groups held for

sale (817) 8 (26)
Balance of cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,090 2,740 3921

(1) Includes data regarding Gav-Yam, which was initially consolidated on March 8, 2022, see Note 3.F.1.A. below.
(2) Adjusted retrospectively due to the presentation of the Cellcom operation under discontinued operations, see Note 12.B.2. below.
(3) For details regarding the purchase of approximately 37.22% of Gav Yam’s issued share capital, see Note 3.A.1.A. below.

The accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated interim financial statements are an integral part hereof.
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DIC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 1 - General

A.

Discount Investment Corporation Ltd. (“DIC”) is a company registered in Israel and incorporated
in Israel, whose address is the ToHa Building, 114 Yigal Alon St., 27th floor, Tel Aviv. The
Company is a holding company which invests, independently and through investee companies, in
companies which are engaged in various segments of the Israeli economy. The Company generally
invests in investee companies at a scope which gives it influence over their direction and
management.

The Company’s shares and debentures are listed for trading on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange Ltd.
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is a company without a controlling shareholder (according to the definition of the
term “control” in the Securities Law, 5728-1968), and is not considered a first tier company (as this
term is defined in the Law to Promote Competition and Reduce Concentration, 5774-2013 (the
“Concentration Law”)), and accordingly, the companies under its control which are reporting
corporations according to the Securities Law are no longer subject to restrictions by virtue of the
Concentration Law, in connection with the ability of the aforementioned companies to directly hold
control of other tier companies.

Proximate to the publication date of the financial statements, Mega Or Holdings Ltd. holds
approximately 29.9% of the Company’s issued capital, and Elco Ltd. holds approximately 29.8%
of the Company’s issued capital.

In March 2022, Property & Building completed a special tender offer which was published, for the
acquisition of the control of Gav-Yam (acquisition of approximately 5% of Gav-Yam’s issued and
paid-up capital). In June 2022, Property & Building completed a transaction for the acquisition of
additional shares of Gav-Yam, which constitute approximately 37.22% of Gav-Yam’s issued and
paid-up capital. Property & Building’s holdings increased to approximately 86.7% of Gav-Yam’s
issued and paid-up capital. For additional details, see Note 3.F.1.A. below.

Impact of the coronavirus pandemic

The novel coronavirus (COVID-19), which began spreading around the world in the first quarter of
2020, is considered an event with extensive macro-economic consequences, including
consequences affecting the business continuity of many businesses, declines in consumption,
dismissal of employees, volatility in exchange rates and in stock exchange indices in various
countries, and other economic effects. In 2022, the Israeli economy continued recovering from the
crisis. As at the publication date of the report, the wave of infections has decreased and the
restrictions on business activities in all market sectors in Israel have been lifted. As at the
publication date of the report, the scope of economic activity has returned to pre-pandemic levels;
however, there is still a certain degree of uncertainty regarding the effects on business activity,
insofar as additional variants of the coronavirus emerge. The Company is continuing to closely
monitor the effects of the coronavirus crisis on its business activities (including on the activities of
the Company’s investees), and is continuously evaluating the effects of the crisis on its activities
and results.

It is noted that due to the fact that the event is not under the Company’s control, and due to the
nature of the crisis, which involves uncertainty, the Company is unable to estimate the duration of
the effects of the coronavirus pandemic on its activity, since it depends on future developments
which cannot be predicted at this time.

The consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Securities
Regulations (Annual Financial Statements), 5770-2010.

These financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on March 26, 2023.
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DIC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 1 - General (Cont.)

D. Main Definitions

(1)

()

3)

(4)

()
(6)

(")

(8)
(©)
(10)

(11)
(12)

Consolidated companies - Entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, the variable returns from its involvement in the investee
company, and when it has the ability to affect those returns through its influence over the
investee company. The evaluation of control includes taking into account real rights which
are held by the Group and by others. See also Note 2.A. below.

Associate Companies - Companies (including participation units in venture capital funds)
which are held by the Company or its consolidated companies, directly or indirectly, and in
which it has significant influence over their monetary and operational policy, and which are
not consolidated companies. The aforementioned investments are presented according to the
equity method.

Joint Arrangement - An arrangement in which the Group has joint control over another party
or parties, which was obtained through an agreement which requires the unanimous consent
of all parties regarding the actions which significantly affect the arrangement’s returns.
Joint Venture - A joint arrangement in which the parties have rights to the net assets attributed
to the arrangement.

Investee Companies - Consolidated companies, associate companies and joint ventures.
Significant Influence - Voting rights of twenty percent or more, or the right to appoint twenty
percent or more of the Board members, unless it is clearly apparent that significant influence
does not exist. Such rights in lower rates may also be considered as conferring significant
influence in cases where the influence is clearly apparent.

The functional currency and presentation currency in these financial statements is the New
Israeli Shekel, which is the Company’s functional currency, and the financial data included
herein are rounded to the nearest million, except as specified otherwise. The New Israeli
Shekel is the currency that represents the Company’s main operating economic environment.
Financial Statements Regulations - the Securities Regulations (Annual Financial Statements),
5770-2010.

Periodic and Immediate Reports Regulations - the Securities Regulations (Periodic and
Immediate Reports), 5730-1970.

Companies Law - the Companies Law, 5759-1999.

IFRS - International Financial Reporting Standards.

In these financial statements (hereinbefore and hereinafter):

The Company and/or DIC - Discount Investment Corporation Ltd. and/or its wholly owned
headquarter companies, as applicable.

The Group - DIC and its consolidated companies;

IDB Development - IDB Development Corporation Ltd.;

Property & Building - Property & Building Corp. Ltd.;

Cellcom - Cellcom lIsrael Ltd.;

Golan - Golan Telecom Ltd.;

Shufersal - Shufersal Ltd.;

Elron - Elron Ventures Ltd.;

Epsilon - Epsilon Investment House Ltd.;

Gav-Yam - Gav-Yam Bayside Land Corporation Ltd.;

Ispro - Ispro The Israeli Properties Rental Corporation Ltd.;

Koor - Koor Industries Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of DIC);

Mehadrin - Mehadrin Ltd.;

IDBG - IDB Group USA Investments Inc.
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DIC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 1 - General (Cont.)

E. Basis for preparation of the financial statements
(1) Measurement basis

)

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with the historical cost of assets
and liabilities, except with respect to the following derivative financial instruments:
financial instruments, derivatives and others which were measured at fair value through
profit and loss; financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income; liabilities with respect to share-based payment to be settled in cash; investment
property; inventory; non-current assets and realization groups held for sale; assets and
liabilities with respect to employee benefits; deferred tax assets and liabilities; provisions
and investments in investee companies accounted by the equity method.

For details regarding the measurement of these assets and liabilities, see Note 2 below
regarding significant accounting policies.

Presented below are details regarding the CPI and the USD exchange rate, and the rates of
change therein:

CPI
Known index  Index in lieu USD exchange rate

% %
Changes during the year
ended:
December 31, 2022 5.3% 5.3% 13.2%
December 31, 2021 2.4% 2.8% (3.3%)
December 31, 2020 (0.6%) (0.7%) (7.0%)
Exchange rate as at (in
NIS)
December 31, 2022 3.519
December 31, 2021 3.110
December 31, 2020 3.215

The operating cycle period and the expense analysis framework which were recognized in
the statement of income

The Group has two operating cycles. With reference to the activities of Property & Building
Group in connection with the construction of buildings for sale, the operating cycle may
continue for up to three years. With reference to the Group’s other activities, the operating
cycle is one year. Due to the foregoing, current assets and current liabilities include items
which are designated and expected to be realized within the operating cycle period, as stated
above. The analysis framework of expenses which were recognized in the statement of
income is in accordance with a classification method which is based on the activity
characteristic of the expense. Additional information regarding the characteristics of the
expense is included, as relevant, in the notes to the financial statements.
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DIC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 1 - General (Cont.)
E. Basis for preparation of the financial statements (Cont.)
(3) A. Use of estimates and judgment

In their preparation of the Group’s financial statements in accordance with IFRS, the
managements of the Company and of the investee companies are required to use
judgment in estimates, approximations and assumptions, including actuarial estimates
and assumptions, which affect the implementation of the accounting policy and the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as capital components. It
is hereby clarified that actual results, which are identified later, may differ from these
estimates.
During the formulation of the accounting estimates which are used in the preparation
of the Company’s financial statements, the Company and the investee companies are
required to make assumptions regarding circumstances and events which involve
significant uncertainty. In exercising judgment regarding the determination of the
estimates, managements rely on past experience, various facts, external factors and
reasonable assumptions, in accordance with the appropriate circumstances of each
estimate.
The estimates and their underlying assumptions which were used in the preparation of
these reports are reviewed on a routine basis. Changes in accounting estimates are
recognized in the period when the estimates were corrected, and in any future affected
period.
Presented below is a description of the critical accounting estimates and significant
judgments which were used in the preparation of these financial statements, regarding
which, at the time of their formulation, management of the Company and the investee
companies were required to make assumptions regarding circumstances and events
involving significant uncertainty.

17



DIC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 1 - General (Cont.)

E. Basis for preparation of the financial statements (Cont.)
(3) A. Use of estimates and judgment (Cont.)

cash generating units
(including those which
include goodwill) of
associate companies and
of properties.

and expected growth rate -
with reference to cash
generating units.

¢ Discount rate after tax and
expected growth rate - with
reference to associate
companies.

e The determination of cash
flows is based on past
experience of the asset or
similar assets, and no the
best estimate of the Group
regarding the economic
conditions which will
prevail.

impairment loss.

Possible
Estimate / judgment Main assumptions implications Main references
Recoverable amount of * Discount rate before tax Change in Note 9.D. below regarding the

impairment test of the goodwill
attributed to Gav-Yam, and the
method used to determine the

recoverable value of its activity.

The fair value
measurement of
investment property and
investment property under
construction, as
determined by
independent valuers with
the appropriate
professional skills

Expected rate of return on
investment property. The
capitalization rates which
were used to measure fair
value, and the expected rent
with respect to the investment

property.

Profit or loss
with respect to
change in the
fair value of
investment
property and
investment
property under
construction.

Note 2.F. below, and Note 6
below.

Existence of control,
effective (de facto) control
or significant influence.

Judgment applied regarding
the method used to determine
the Group’s stake in the
shares of the investees (in
consideration of the existence
and influence of potential
voting rights which are
significant), in the rights to
appoint representatives for the
entity which manages the
companies (generally the
Board of Directors) as a result
of the bylaws of the investees,
and agreements with other
shareholders of the investees,
in the composition and
distribution of the rights of
the other shareholders in the
investees and voting patterns
in general meetings, and the
holding company’s ability to
determine the operational and
financial policy of the
investees, or to take part in
the determination of such

policy.

Accounting
treatment of an
investee
company as a
subsidiary, or as
a company
accounted by
the equity
method.

Note 2.A.1. and Note 2.A.7.
below, regarding the accounting
treatment of subsidiaries and
investees accounted by the
equity method.

Comment (1) in Note 3.D.
below, regarding the control of
Cellcom and Mehadrin.

Note 12.B.2.B. below regarding,
regarding the control of
Cellcom.
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DIC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 1 - General (Cont.)

E. Basis for preparation of the financial statements (Cont.)
(3) A. Use of estimates and judgment (Cont.)

Estimate / judgment

Main assumptions

Possible
implications

Main references

Qualitative considerations
for determining whether
or not the replacement of
the debt instrument
involves significantly
different terms

The entire set of characteristics of the
exchanged debt instruments, and the
economic parameters represented
therein:
e Auverage lifetime of the exchanged
liabilities;
Extent of effects of the debt terms
(linkage to index; Foreign currency;
variable interest) on the cash flows

Classification of
a debt
instrument in a
manner whereby
it will not reflect
the change in the
debt terms,
which will affect
the method of

Note 2.C.3. below, regarding
financial liabilities.

recognized over time or at a single point
in time (upon delivery), the Group relies
on legal opinions, the provisions of the
contract, and the relevant provisions of
the law, in its determination regarding
whether the Group has a the right to
enforce the fulfillment of contract.

apartment sales.

from the instruments. accounting
recording.
Determination of method For the purpose of determining whether | Change in the Note 2.T.5. below.
for fulfillment of the control of goods or services is timing of
performance obligation transferred to the customer over time, recognition of
and as a result, that income should be income from

Valuation and estimated
lifetimes of intangible
assets.

e The estimated useful lifetime of
intangible assets and expected
market developments.

e Expected cash flows from customer
relations and other intangible assets
and replacement value of brands.

e Incorrect
allocation of
the
acquisition
cost of
investments
in investee
companies.

¢ Recognition
of accelerated
or slow
depreciation
with respect
to actual data.

Note 2.E and Note 9 below,
regarding intangible assets.

Uncertain tax positions

e The degree of uncertainty regarding
the acceptance of the Group’s tax
positions, and the risk that it will
bear additional tax and interest
expenses. The above is based on an
analysis of several factors, including
interpretations of tax laws and the
Group’s past experience, including
regarding the classification of
transferred tax losses.

An estimate of the amount of

¢ Recognition
of additional
expenses with
respect to
taxes on
income.

e Changes in
the amounts
of tax assets
with respect to

Note 30 below regarding taxes on
income.

were filed against the Company and
its investee companies, based on the
opinion of their legal advisors.

with respect to
aclaim.

transferred losses which could be transferred

used, the expected taxable income, losses for tax

the timing thereof and the amount of purposes.

deferred taxes which are to be

created.
Estir_nated clj\an.(:g? of m;eézg:\étrésicrtggglzlrlf:i!s,yvt/?ﬁnbgc;)ent Cancell._ation Note 22 _below _regarding )
contingent liabilities. with respect to legal claims which or creation of | outstanding claims and contingent

a provision liabilities.
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DIC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 1 - General (Cont.)

E. Basis for preparation of the financial statements (Cont.)
(3) A. Use of estimates and judgment (Cont.)

Estimate / judgment

Main assumptions

Possible implications

Main references

Unasserted claims

Reliance on internal estimates of the
handling entities and the
managements of companies.
Consideration of the estimated chance
that a claim will be filed, and the
claim’s chances of success, if and
insofar as it is filed.

In light of the preliminary stage of the
investigation of the legal claims, actual
results may differ from the assessment
which was prepared during the stage when
the claim had not yet been filed.

Note 22.C below
regarding claims
against the Company
and its investee
companies.

Assessment regarding
whether cash flows
with respect to financial
assets include principal
and interest only (SPPI)

Whether the business model assumes
the collection of cash flows of
principal and interest only, which will
be paid on the date specified in the
contractual terms.

insofar as the business model is to hold the
financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and their contractual
terms include entitlement, on predefined
dates, to cash flows which constitute only
principal and interest with respect to the
amount of unpaid principal, then the
financial asset will be measured according
to its amortized cost, and if not, it will be
measured at fair value.

Note 3.F.4.A. below
regarding the
measurement of the
deferred
consideration
component in the
Cartiheal transaction.

Measurement of
variable consideration

For the purpose of determining the
transaction price, the Group estimates
the amount of variable consideration
and recognizes income with respect to
the amount regarding which it is
highly probable that significant
cancellation of the total recognized
cumulative income will not occur,
when the uncertainty associated with
the variable consideration will be
found out later on.

Increase or decrease in the amount of
revenue which will be recognized
throughout the contract period

Note 3.F.4.A. below
regarding the
measurement of the
financial asset with
respect to the
contingent
consideration in the
Cartiheal transaction.

Estimate of expected
credit losses

As part of the impairment test of
financial assets, the Group estimates
whether the credit risk attributed to the
financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
and uses forecasts to measure the
expected credit losses.

Increase or decrease in the amount of the
provision for impairment.

See Note 3.F.4.A.
below for details
regarding an
evaluation of the
credit risk with
respect to the balance
of deferred
consideration in the
Cartiheal transaction.

Determination of the
lease period and
appropriate rent

Exercise of extension options, or non-
exercise of cancellation options.
Extension options, or periods after the
deadline for exercise of cancellation
options, are included in the lease
period only if is virtually certain that
the lease will be extended (or not
canceled).

Increase or decrease in the initial
measurement of a right-of-use asset and
lease liability, and in depreciation and
finance expenses in subsequent periods.

Notes 2.G and 7
below with respect to
lease assets and
liabilities.

Determination of the
discount rate in leases

In cases where the interest rate
implicit in the lease cannot be easily
determined, the Group’s incremental
interest rate is used.

Increase or decrease in the initial
measurement of a right-of-use asset and
lease liability, and in depreciation and
finance expenses in subsequent periods.

Notes 2.G and 7
below with respect to
lease assets and
liabilities.

Classification of
liabilities classified as
held for sale

Assessment that the sale is expected
as a transaction completed within one
year.

Insofar as the sale is not expected to be
executed as a transaction which was
completed within one year, the Company
will not classify the property / investment as
held for sale and as a discontinued
operation, and the property / investment
will not be measured in accordance with the
provisions of IFRS 5.

Notes 2.P. and 12
below.
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DIC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 1 - General (Cont.)
E. Basis for preparation of the financial statements (Cont.)
(3) B. Change in estimate

Cellcom evaluates each year the estimated useful lifetimes of customer acquisition
assets and installations at customer homes.
In the evaluation, it was found that the average lifetime of trade receivables increased
due to the decrease in the customer churn rate.
In light of the foregoing, on April 1, 2022, Cellcom updated the estimated useful
lifetime of customer acquisition assets and installation assets for three years and five
years, respectively.

The impact of these changes on the financial statements in the current year and in
subsequent years is as follows:

For the year ended December 31

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026

NIS millions
Decrease (increase) in
depreciation expenses 36 8 (27) (12) ()
Income (expenses) from taxes
on income (8) (2) 6 3 1
28 6 (21) 9) 4)
The Company’s share 10 2 @) 4) 1)

C. Determination of fair value
1. For the purpose of preparing the financial statements, the Group is required to
determine the fair value of certain assets and liabilities. Additional information
regarding the assumptions which were used in the determination of fair value is
included in the following notes:

Note 4 regarding financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss;

Note 5 regarding fixed assets purchased in a business combination;

Note 6 regarding investment property;

Note 9 regarding intangible assets;

Note 20 regarding financial instruments.

Annex B regarding share-based payment arrangements.

2. When determining the fair value of assets or liabilities, the Group uses observable
market inputs as much as possible. Fair value measurements are divided into three
levels in the fair value hierarchy, based on the inputs which were used in the
evaluation, as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (non-adjusted) prices in an active market for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 — Directly or indirectly observable market inputs, which are not included
in Level 1 above;

Level 3 — Fair value which is not based on observable market inputs.

mmoow»
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 1 - General (Cont.)

E.

Basis for preparation of the financial statements (Cont.)

(4)

Evaluation of the materiality of asset valuations for the purpose of their disclosure or attachment

The Company evaluates the materiality of asset and liability valuations for the purpose of providing
disclosure regarding them or attaching them to annual financial statements and interim statements, in
accordance with Regulation 8B of the Periodic and Immediate Reports Regulations and Regulation 49
of the Periodic and Immediate Reports Regulations, respectively, and in accordance with legal position
no. 105-23: parameters for evaluating the materiality of valuations, which was published by the Israel
Securities Authority in July 2014. In general, a valuation is considered highly material if the subject of
the valuation constitutes 10% or more of the Company’s total assets in the statement of financial position
as at the last day of the reporting period, or if the impact of the change in value, as a result of the
valuation, on the net or comprehensive income attributed to the owners of the Company, as applicable,
constitutes at least 10% of the net or comprehensive income attributed to the owners of the Company,
respectively, for the reporting period (the “Resultant Test”), provided that, with respect to the resultant
test, the impact of the change in value, as a result of the valuation of net or comprehensive income
attributed to the owners of the Company, as applicable, constitutes at least 5% of capital attributed to
the owners of the Company. A valuation which is not highly material will be considered material if it
meets a quantitative threshold which constitutes half of the quantitative threshold which corresponds to
the classification of a valuation as highly material, as stated above (in other words, 5% instead of 10%,
and 2.5% instead of 5%).

The application of the resultant test to the materiality of a valuation in an interim period will be
performed with respect to the net or comprehensive income attributed to the owners of the Company,
which is expected for the current year, in its entirety.

If it is not possible to reasonably estimate the expected net income or comprehensive income for the
current year in its entirety, the resultant test will be applied with respect to net or comprehensive income,
as applicable, for the period of four quarters prior to the last day of the interim period. In case a valuation
meets the resultant test for classification as “highly material” (“very highly material valuation in
accordance with the resultant test”), the Company evaluates whether, based on qualitative
considerations, it would be appropriate to determine that it is not highly material, and therefore, it will
not be attached to the financial statements.

In accordance with the aforementioned legal position, the Company applies, as part of the above, as an
additional test, the “normal earnings test”, which constitutes an accepted indicator for evaluation of the
results of holding companies of the Company’s type. The normal earnings test is used by the Company
in its evaluation of materiality and insignificance in other contexts as well. According to the
aforementioned additional test, in the absence of other special qualitative considerations, a very highly
material valuation according to the resultant test will not be considered highly material, and will not be
attached to the financial statements, if the impact of the change on the value of the subject of the
valuation attributed to the owners of the Company is less than 10% of the “annual normal earnings”
attributed to the owners of the Company (which is earnings for the last four quarters), calculated based
on an average of the absolute values of quarterly profit / loss attributed to the owners of the Company,
in each of the last 12 quarters.

Additionally, in the absence of special qualitative considerations, a very highly material valuation
according to the resultant test will not be considered highly material, and will not be attached to the
financial statements, if the impact of the subject of the valuation on net or comprehensive income
(attributed to the owners of the Company), as applicable, as included in the financial statements for the
reporting period (annual or interim) in the current year, is less than 10% of net or comprehensive income
(attributed to the owners of the Company) for the previous reporting year, and is not expected to exceed
10% of expected net or comprehensive income (attributed to the owners of the Company) of the next
reporting year. In cases where, as a result of the implementation of these tests, a very highly material
valuation is not attached according to the resultant test, disclosure is given for the foregoing in the Board
of Directors’ report, as required in the aforementioned legal position.

Qualitative considerations may lead to the attachment of a valuation, even if, in quantitative terms, it
does not meet the tests for definition as “highly material”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 1 - General (Cont.)
E. Basis for preparation of the financial statements (Cont.)
(5) Attachment of reports of material associate companies and joint ventures

In connection with the adoption of Regulation 44 of the Periodic and Immediate Reports
Regulations and Regulation 23 of the Financial Statements Regulations, regarding associate
companies and joint ventures whose reports must be attached (1) due to the fact that the
Company’s investment in the associate company or joint venture, in absolute values,
constitutes twenty percent or more of the total assets the Company’s consolidated statement
of financial position, or (2) due to the fact that the amount which was included in the
statement of income with respect to the Company’s investment in the associate company
or joint venture constitutes, in absolute terms, twenty percent or more of the Company’s
profit or loss during the reporting period, in absolute terms.

During the interim period, the Company’s share total profit or loss, in absolute terms, of

the associate company or joint venture, during the four quarters ending on the date of the

interim statement of financial position, constitute twenty percent or more of the total profit
or loss, in absolute terms, of the corporation, throughout the four quarters ending on the
date of the statement of financial position.

According to the Company’s position, in the absence of special qualitative considerations,

the financial statements of associate companies and joint ventures, in which the following

three ratios have been cumulatively met, will be considered as insignificant reports relative
to the Company’s financial statements, and therefore, will not be attached to their financial
statements, and summary information regarding them will not be given:

(A) The multiple of the total assets of the associate company or joint venture by the holding
rate therein, with respect to all assets in the Company’s statement of financial position,
is lower than 0.5%;

(B) The multiple of the total income of the associate company or joint venture by the
holding rate therein, with respect to all assets in the Company’s consolidated
statements of income for the reported quarter, is lower than 0.5%;

(C) The Company’s share, net, in the results of the associate company or joint venture for
the 4 last quarters, in absolute values, does not exceed 2%, of the Company’s normal
earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting principles specified below were applied consistently to all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements. The accounting principles specified below refer, in the context of
the consolidated financial statements, both to the Group’s member companies and to investees
accounted by the equity method. In this note, issues presented in bold are those to which the
Company has chosen to apply accounting alternatives which are permitted under accounting
standards and/or issues regarding which no explicit provision exists in accounting standards,
or in case of the early adoption of new accounting standards. Such bold text serves for
identification purposes only of the aforementioned issues, and does not attribute any additional
importance to non-bold text.
A. Consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements include the statements of companies over which the
Company holds control (subsidiaries). Control exists when the Group is exposed, or holds rights,
to variable returns from its involvement in the acquired entity, and when it is able to affect those
returns through its influence over the acquired entity. The evaluation of control includes taking
into account real rights which are held by the Group and by others. The Group assesses whether
it does or does not have control of a company in which it holds less than the majority of voting
rights, inter alia, according to its share in the voting rights relative to the shares of other parties
with voting rights, and the manner of distribution of the other holdings, as well as the voting
patterns in previous shareholders’ meetings. The consolidation of the financial statements is
performed beginning on the date when control is obtained, until the date when control is lost.
Balances, material inter-company transactions and profit and loss due to transactions between
the Group’s member companies were canceled in the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized losses were canceled in the same manner which was used to cancel unrealized profits,
so long as there is no evidence of impairment.
Business combinations and transactions with non-controlling interests
1.  Business combinations
A business combination is a transaction or another event in which the buyer obtains control
over one business or several businesses.
A Dbusiness is an integrated system of operations and assets which can be operated and
managed in order to achieve returns in the form of dividends, reduced costs or other
economic benefits directly for investors or other owners, members or participants.
A business is comprised of an input and a substantive process which together contribute
significantly to the ability to produce outputs.
The acquisition date is the date when the buyer obtained control of the acquired entity. The
Company exercises judgment in determining whether it qualifies as a business, in
determining the acquisition date, and in determining whether control has been obtained.
Subsidiaries
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements beginning on the date when control is obtained, until the date when
control is discontinued. The accounting policy of subsidiaries was changed if needed in
order to adjust it to the accounting policy which was adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

A. Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)
Business combinations (Cont.)

1.

The Group recognizes goodwill on the acquisition date according to the fair value of
the consideration which was transferred, including amounts which were recognized
with respect to any non-controlling interests in the acquired entity, and in consideration
of the fair value as at the acquisition date of any capital interest in the acquired entity
which was previously held by the Group, after deducting the net amount attributed in
the acquisition to identifiable assets which were acquired and to liabilities which were
accepted. The transferred consideration includes the fair value of the assets which were
transferred to the previous owner of the acquired entity, liabilities which materialized
for the buyer towards the previous owner of the acquired entity, and capital interests
which were issued by the Group.

If the Group performs a bargain purchase (a purchase which includes negative
goodwill), it recognizes the profit which was created as a result in the statement of
income on the acquisition date. Additionally, goodwill is not updated in subsequent
periods with respect to the use of transferred losses for tax purposes which existed on
the date of the business combination. The update to losses, as stated above, is applied
to the statement of income.

The buyer recognizes, on the acquisition date, the contingent liability which was
accepted in a business combination, if there is a commitment in the present which is
due to past events, and whose fair value is reliably measurable.

In a business combination which is realized in stages, the difference between the fair
value as at the acquisition date of the capital interests in the acquired entity which
were previously held by the Group and their book value as at that date is applied
to the statement of income under the item for “profit from realization and
increase in value of investments and assets, and dividends”, unless the previous
investment was classified under the category of fair value through other
comprehensive income. In this situation, a resultant effect is not recognized. Fair
value, for this purpose, in case of a marketable asset, is its market value, except in
cases where there is evidence which clearly indicates that the fair value the
aforementioned asset is different from its market value.

Acquisition-related costs which materialized for the buyer with respect to a business
combination, such as agency fees, consulting fees, legal costs, valuations and other
costs with respect to professional services or consulting services, excluding those
associated with the issuance of debt or equity instruments in connection with the
business combination, are recognized as an expense in the period when the services
are received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

A. Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

1.

Business combinations (Cont.)
e Update to excess cost:
If the preliminary accounting treatment in a business combination has not been
completed by the end of the reporting period when the business combination occurred,
the Group reports provisional amounts with respect to the items whose accounting
treatment has not been completed. During the measurement period, which will not
exceed one year after the acquisition date, the Group retroactively adjusts the
provisional amounts which were recognized on the acquisition date, in order to reflect
new information which has been obtained regarding the facts and circumstances which
applies on the acquisition date, and which, had they been known, would have affected
the measurement of the amounts which were recognized on that date.
Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests, both in the capital of a subsidiary which is not attributable,
directly or indirectly, to the parent company, and which include additional components,
such as share-based payment to be settled with capital instruments of subsidiaries, and
share options of subsidiaries.
Measurement of non-controlling interests on the date of the business combination
Non-controlling interests which are instruments which confer ownership rights in the
present, and provide their holders with a share in net assets in case of liquidation (for
example: ordinary shares), are measured on the date of the business combination at fair
value, or according to their relative share in the recognized assets and liabilities of the
acquired entity, based on each transaction separately. This accounting policy is not
permitted for other instruments which meet the definition of non-controlling interests (for
example, ordinary share options). These instruments are measured at fair value, or in
accordance with the provisions of other relevant IFRS.
Allocation of profit or loss and other comprehensive income among shareholders
Profit or loss, and any component of other comprehensive income, are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to non-controlling interests. The total profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the Company and to non-controlling
interests, even if, balance of the balance of non-controlling interests is negative.
Transactions with non-controlling interests, while retaining control
Transactions with non-controlling interests while retaining control are treated as capital
transactions. Any difference between the consideration which was paid or received, and
the change in non-controlling interests, is applied to the capital reserve with respect to
transactions with non-controlling interests, under the capital attributed to owners of
the Company. The capital reserve with respect to transactions with non-controlling
interests is not applied to the statement of income or to comprehensive income (including
not upon realization of the subsidiary for which the reserve was created).
In case of changes to the holding rate of a subsidiary, while retaining control, the Company
re-attributes the cumulative amounts which were recognized under other comprehensive
income between the owners of the Company and non-controlling interests. The amount at
which non-controlling interests are calculated is as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)
A. Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

In an increase in the holding rate, according to the relative share of the acquired entity
out of the balance of non-controlling interests in the consolidated financial statements
before the transaction, including non-controlling interests which were attributed to
originally attributed differences and to goodwill, with no changes to their values.
In a decrease in the holding rate, according to the relative share which was realized by
the owner of the subsidiary in the net assets of the subsidiary, including goodwill and
original attributed differences, if any, with no change to their value. Cash flows from
transactions with non-controlling interests while retaining control are classified under
financing activities in the statement of cash flows.
Inter-company transactions which are attributed to the transfer of shares of
subsidiaries (regardless of whether such transactions are performed in cash or
through a share exchange) in which a change has occurred in the rate of non-
controlling interests, are treated as transactions with non-controlling interests.

3. Transactions resulting in the deconsolidation of financial statements
Loss of control
Upon loss of control, the Group writes off the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any
non-controlling interests, and amounts which were recognized in capital reserves through
other comprehensive income, with reference to that subsidiary. If the Group still has any
remaining investment in the former subsidiary, the balance of the investment is measured
at fair value on the date of loss of control. The difference between the consideration and
the fair value of the balance of the investment, and the balances which were written off, is
recognized under profit and loss in the item for “profit from realization and increase in
value of investments and assets, and dividends” or in the item for “loss from
realization, impairment and write-down of investments and assets”, as applicable.
From that date onwards, the remaining investment is accounted by the equity method or as
a financial asset, in accordance with the text of the Group’s influence on the relevant
investee company.
The amounts which were recognized in capital reserves through other comprehensive
income with reference to that subsidiary are reclassified to profit or loss or to retained
earnings, in the same manner which would have been required had the subsidiary
independently realized the applicable assets or liabilities.

4.  Cancellation of inter-company transactions
Unrealized profits due to transactions with associate companies and with joint
ventures were canceled against the asset involved in the transaction, in accordance
with the Group’s rights in those investments. Unrealized losses were canceled in the
same manner which was used to cancel unrealized profits, so long as there is no evidence
of impairment.

5.  Investment in associate companies and joint ventures
In the evaluation regarding the existence of significant influence over an associate
company, potential voting rights are taken into account which are exercisable or
convertible immediately into its shares. The investment in associate companies and joint
ventures is accounted by the equity method and is recognized for the first time at cost. The
cost of the investment includes transaction costs.
Transaction costs which are directly attributed to the expected acquisition of an associate
company or joint venture are recognized as an asset under the item for deferred expenses
in the statement of financial position. These costs are added to the cost of the investment
on the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

A. Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

5.

Investment in associate companies and joint ventures (Cont.)

These financial statements include the Group’s share in the profit and loss of associate
companies and joint ventures (including recognition of profit or loss with respect to the
capital reserve in the capital reserve which was recorded by the associate companies
and joint ventures with respect to transactions with non-controlling interests) and
under their other comprehensive income (loss), following the required adjustments in order
to adjust their accounting policy to that of the Group, from the date when significant
influence or joint control materialized, until the date when significant influence or joint
control was discontinued.

In cases where the Group’s share in long term loans, which constitutes a part of the
investment in the investee, is different from its share in the capital of the investee, the
Group recognizes its shares in the losses of the investee, after amortizing to zero the capital
investment, in accordance with the rate of its economic entitlement to the investment over
the long term, at that time. The Group does not recognize additional losses of the investee
company, except insofar as the Group has an obligation to support the investee company,
or if the Group has paid amounts for it, or has given loans to it.

The Group applies the provisions of IFRS 9 with respect to long term loans, the settlement
of which is not planned, and which is unlikely to occur in the foreseeable future, which
essentially constitute a part of the entity’s net investment in the associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the provisions regarding classification and measurement (including the
recognition of impairment of a loan according to IFRS 9) are applied for those loans before
taking into account the share in the losses of that associate or joint venture. Loans which
were given to investees, as stated above, are classified as financial assets which are
presented at fair value through profit or loss, since they do not meet the definition provided
in IFRS 9 for classification at amortized cost. These foreign currency differences are
applied to other comprehensive income.

Excess cost in associate companies and joint ventures is presented as part of the
investment. The excess acquisition cost of the investment in an associate company or joint
venture beyond the Group’s share in the fair value of the identifiable assets of the investee
company (including intangible assets), after deducting the fair value of the identifiable
liabilities of the investee company (after attribution of taxes) on the acquisition date is
attributed to goodwill.

If the Group performs a bargain purchase (a purchase which includes negative goodwill),
it recognizes the profit which was created as a result in the statement of income on the
acquisition date. Additionally, goodwill is not updated in subsequent periods with respect
to the use of transferred losses for tax purposes which existed on the date of the business
combination. The update to losses, as stated above, is applied to the statement of income.
The excess cost which was attributed in the associate company or joint venture to
identifiable assets and identifiable liabilities with a defined useful lifetime are amortized
in accordance with the aforementioned useful lifetime. Goodwill and intangible assets with
an undefined useful lifetime are not systematically amortized. For details regarding the
impairment test of goodwill and intangible assets, as stated above, see section P. below.
For details regarding the attribution of with respect to investment in associate companies
and joint ventures, see section X. below.

For details regarding adjustments due to the translation of financial statements of associate
companies and joint ventures, see section B. below.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

A. Consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

5.

Investment in associate companies and joint ventures (Cont.)

Loans with characteristics of long term investments, which are provided by the Group to
associate companies, constitute a part of the investment in investees and are presented
under the item for equity accounted investees.

In parallel, the finance income with respect to these loans is presented under the item
for the Group’s share in the net profit of equity accounted investee companies, net,
instead of presentation under separate items.

Change in holding rates in associate companies and joint ventures accounted by the
equity method, while retaining significant influence or joint control

In case of an increase of the stake in an associate company or joint venture accounted by
the equity method, while retaining significant influence, the Group applies the acquisition
method only with respect to the additional holding rates, whereas the previous holding
remains unchanged.

In case of a decrease in the holding rate of an equity accounted associate company or joint
venture, while retaining significant influence or joint control, the Group derecognizes the
proportional part of its investment, and recognizes the profit or loss from the sale under
the item for “profit from the realization and increase in value of investments and assets,
and dividends”, or under the item for “loss from realization, impairment and write-down
of investments and assets”, as applicable.

The cost of the rights which were sold, with respect to purchases which were executed
in stages in the past, for the purpose of calculating profit or loss from the sale is
determined according to a weighted average.

Additionally, the relative share of the amounts which were recognized in capital reserves
through other comprehensive income, with reference to that associate company or joint
venture accounted by the equity method, or entity under joint control, is applied to the
statement of income or to retained earnings.

Loss of significant influence or joint control

The Group discontinues the application of the equity method beginning on the date when
it lost significant influence over the associate company or the joint control over the joint
venture, and accounts for the remaining investment as a financial asset, and in case of rise
to control - as a subsidiary, as applicable.

On the date of loss of significant influence or joint control, the Group measures the fair
value of any remaining investment in the former associate company or joint venture. The
Company recognizes in the statement of income in the item for “profit from realization and
increase in value of investments and assets, and dividends”, or in the item for “loss from
realization, impairment and write-down of investments and assets”, as applicable, any
difference between the fair value of any remaining investment and any consideration from
the realization of part of the investment in the associate company or joint venture, an the
book value of the investment on that date.

The amounts which were recognized through other comprehensive income, with reference
to that associate company or joint venture, are reclassified to profit and loss or to retained
earnings in the same manner as would have been required, had the associate company or
joint venture independently realized the applicable assets or liabilities.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

B.

Foreign currency

The functional currency is determined separately for each investee company, including an
associate company presented in accordance with the equity method, and this currency is used to
measure its financial position and operating results. When the functional currency of an investee
company is different from that of the Company, the investee company constitutes a foreign
operation whose financial statements data are translated for the purpose of including them in the
Company’s financial statements.

1.

Transactions in foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the relevant functional currencies of the
Group’s member companies according to the exchange rate transactions as at the dates of
the transactions, and for transactions which are distributed equally throughout the period -
according to the average exchange rate during the period. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency, which exist as at the reporting date, are translated to the
functional currency according to the exchange rate which is in effect as at that date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities which are measured at historical cost in the foreign currency
are translated according to the exchange rate on the transaction date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities, which are denominated in foreign currencies and measured at fair value, are
translated to the functional currency according to the exchange rate which is in effect on
the date when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences due to the
functional currency are generally recognized in profit and loss; however, such foreign
currency differences are recognized under other comprehensive income (loss) when they
are due to the translation of derivatives which are used in cash flow hedging, with respect
to the effective part of the hedge, and with respect to equity financial instruments which
were designated to fair value through other comprehensive income.

Foreign operations

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and adjustments to fair
value which were created in the acquisition, were translated to NIS according to the
exchange rate which was in effect as at the reporting date. Income and expenses of foreign
operations were translated to NIS according to the exchange rates which were in effect on
the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences with respect to the translation are recognized under other
comprehensive income (loss) and are presented under capital in the translation reserve for
foreign operations, (“Translation Reserve”).

When a foreign operation is a subsidiary which is not wholly owned by the Group, the
proportional part of the foreign currency differences with respect to the foreign operation
is allocated to non-controlling interests.

The financial statements of a foreign operation which is not directly held are
translated to NIS in accordance with the consolidation in stages method, according to
which the financial statements of the foreign operation are first translated to the
functional currency of the direct parent company, and are later translated to the
functional currency of the ultimate parent company.

Therefore, upon realization of a foreign operation which is not directly held, the
Group reclassifies to profit and loss the cumulative amount in the cumulative amount
translation reserve in the direct parent company that holds the foreign operation.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

B.

Foreign currency (Cont.)

If the functional currency of the directly held operation and the functional currency
of the direct parent company are identical, the Group’s policy is not to classify under
profit and loss foreign currency differences which accrued in the translation reserve
of the ultimate parent company with respect to the realization of the foreign operation
which is indirectly held, as stated above.

Upon realization of a directly held foreign operation, which results in loss of control, or to
loss of joint control or loss of significant influence, the cumulative amount in the translation
reserve which is due to the foreign operation is reclassified to profit and loss as part of the
profit or loss from the realization.

Additionally, in case of changes to the Group’s stake in a subsidiary which includes a
foreign operation, while retaining control of the subsidiary, a proportional part of the
cumulative total of the foreign currency differences which were recognized under other
comprehensive income (loss) is re-attributed to non-controlling interests.

When the Group realizes part of an investment which is a associate company or joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, while retaining significant influence or joint
control, the proportional part of the cumulative amount of foreign currency differences is
reclassified under profit and loss.

In general, foreign currency differences with respect to loans which were received or
provided to foreign operations, including foreign operations which are subsidiaries, are
recognized under profit and loss in the consolidated reports.

When the settlement of loans which the Group received from a foreign operation, or
provided to it, is not planned and not expected in the foreseeable future, profit and loss
from foreign currency differences which are due to those monetary items are included as
part of the investment in the foreign operation, net, and are recognized under other
comprehensive income (loss), and are presented in capital, as part of the translation reserve.
The settlement of these loans is not considered realization of the investment, net, in
the foreign operation, and therefore, upon realization of the loans, as stated above, the
foreign currency differences which were recognized with respect to other comprehensive
income are not applied to profit and loss.
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

C. Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial assets

1.

A.

Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
The Group initially recognizes trade receivables and debt instruments which were
issued on the date of their creation. Other financial assets are initially recognized on
the trade date.
A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, with respect
to all financial assets which are not measured at fair value through profit or loss,
excluding trade receivables. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognized at fair value, and the transaction expenses are applied to
the statement of income. Trade receivables which do not include significant financing
components are initially measured according to the transaction price. Receivables
originating from contractual assets are initially measured according to the book value
of the contractual assets on the date of change of classification from contractual assets
to receivables.
Write-off of financial assets
Financial assets are written off when the Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows
which are due to the financial asset expire, or when the Group transfers the rights to
receive the cash flows which are due to the financial asset in a transaction wherein all
risks and benefits from the ownership of the financial asset have been effectively
transferred.
If the Group essentially remains with all of the risks and benefits due to the ownership
of the financial asset, the Group continues recognizing the financial asset.
Classification of financial assets into groups
On the date of initial recognition, financial assets are classified to one of the following
measurement categories: amortized cost; fair value through other comprehensive
income - investments in debt instruments; fair value through other comprehensive
income - investments in equity instruments; or fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are not reclassified in subsequent periods, except if, and only if, the
Group has changed its business model for the management of financial debt assets, in
which case the affected financial debt assets are reclassified at the start of the first
reporting period after the change in the business model.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it fulfills the following two
cumulative conditions, and if it is not intended for measurement at fair value through
profit and loss:
e Held within the framework of a business model whose aim is to hold assets in order
to collect the contractual cash flows; and
e The contractual terms of the financial asset grant entitlement, on predefined dates,
to cash flows which constitute only principal and interest payments with respect to
the unpaid principal.
A debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income only
if it fulfills the following two cumulative conditions, and if it is not designated for
measurement at fair value through profit and loss:
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Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)
C. Financial instruments (Cont.)
1.  Non-derivative financial assets (Cont.)
C. Classification of financial assets into groups (Cont.)

e Held within the framework of a business model whose purpose is fulfilled both by
collecting contractual cash flows and by selling financial assets; and

e The contractual terms of the debt instrument grant entitlement, on predefined dates,
to cash flows which constitute only the principal and interest payments with respect
to the unpaid principal amount.

In certain cases, on the date of initial recognition of an investment in a non-held for
trading equity instrument, the Group chooses, irrevocably, to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of the instrument under other comprehensive income. This
choice is made based for each investment separately.
All financial assets which are not classified for measurement at amortized cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as described above, as well as financial
assets designated to fair value through profit and loss, are measured at fair value
through profit and loss. On the date of initial recognition, the Group designates
financial assets fair value through profit and loss when the aforementioned designation
significantly cancels or reduces an accounting mismatch.
The Group has balances of trade receivables and other receivables, and deposits which
are held within the framework of a business model which is intended for the collection
of contractual cash flows. The contractual cash flows with respect to these financial
assets include only principal and interest payments which reflect a consideration for
the time value of money and the credit risk. Accordingly, these financial assets are
measured at amortized cost.

Assessment of the business model for debt assets

The Group assesses the purpose of the business model for which the financial asset is

held on the level of the portfolio, since this best reflects the way in which the business

is managed and information is provided to management. In the determination of the

Group’s business model, the following considerations are taken into account:

e The declared policies and goals with respect to the portfolio, and the actual
implementation of the policy, including whether the strategy of management
focuses on the receipt of contractual interest, on maintaining a certain interest
profile, on adjusting the lifetime of the financial assets to the lifetime of any related
liabilities or projected cash flows, or the realization of cash flows by selling the
assets;

e The way in which the performance of the business model, and of the financial assets
which are held according to that model, are assessed and reported to the entity’s
key management personnel;

e The risks which affect the performance of the business model (and of the financial
assets which are held according to that business model), and the method for
management of those risks;

e The way in which the business’s executives are compensated (for example, whether
the compensation is based on the fair value of the managed assets, or on the
contractual cash flows which were collected); and

e The frequency, value and timing of sales of financial assets in previous periods, the
reasons for the sales, and the expectations regarding future sales activity.
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C. Financial instruments (Cont.)
Non-derivative financial assets (Cont.)

1.

C.

Classification of financial assets into groups (Cont.)
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions which do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for the purpose of the assessment of the business
model, consistently throughout the Group’s recognition of those financial assets.
Financial assets which are held for trading or are managed, and whose performance is
estimated based on fair value, are measured at fair value through profit and loss.
Assessment regarding whether cash flows include principal and interest only
For the purpose of evaluating whether the cash flows include principal and interest
only, the “principal” means the fair value of the financial asset on the date of initial
recognition. “Interest” is comprised of consideration for the time value of money, for
the credit risk attributed to the unredeemed principal amount during a certain period of
time, and for other basic risks and costs of the loan, as well as a profit margin.
In the evaluation regarding whether contractual cash flows constitute flows of principal
and interest only, the Group evaluates the contractual terms of the instrument, and as
part of the above, evaluates whether the financial asset includes a contractual condition
which may change the timing or amount of the contractual cash flows, such that it does
not fulfill the aforementioned condition. The Group takes into account the following
considerations in its performance of this evaluation:
e Any conditional events which could change the timing or amount of the cash
flows;
e Conditions which may change the stated interest rate, including variable interest;
e Characteristics of extension or prepayment; and
e Terms which restrict the Group’s right to cash flows from defined assets (for
example, non-recourse financial assets).
A prepayment characteristic is consistent with the principal and interest only criterion
if the prepayment amount essentially represents unpaid amounts of principal and
interest with respect to the unpaid amount of principal, which may include reasonable
compensation, which is received or paid, with respect to the early termination of the
contract.
Additionally, with respect to a financial asset which was purchased at a significant
premium or discount relative to its contractual par value, a characteristic which permits
or requires prepayment, in an amount which essentially represents the contractual par
value and the contractual interest which has accrued but has not yet been paid (which
may include reasonable compensation which is received or paid with respect to early
termination) is consistent with the principal and interest only criterion, if the fair value
of the prepayment term is immaterial at the time of initial recognition.
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C. Financial instruments (Cont.)
1.  Non-derivative financial assets (Cont.)

D.

Subsequent measurement and profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

In subsequent periods, these assets are measured at fair value. Net profit and loss,
including interest or dividend income, are recognized under profit and loss (excluding
certain derivative instruments, which are designated as hedging instruments).
Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
These assets are measured in subsequent periods at fair value. Dividends are recognized
as income under profit or loss, unless the dividend clearly represents return of a part of
the cost of an investment. Other net profit and loss are recognized in other
comprehensive income, and are not reclassified to the statement of income.

Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are measured in subsequent periods at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, and after deducting impairment loss. Interest income, profit or loss
from exchange differences and impairment are recognized under profit and loss. Any
profit or loss due to derecognition is also recognized under profit and loss.
Investments in debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
These assets are measured in subsequent periods at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, profit or loss from foreign currency
differences, and impairment, are recognized under profit and loss. Other net profit and
loss are recognized under other comprehensive income. On the date of derecognition,
profit and loss which have accrued under other comprehensive income are reclassified
in the statement of income.

2. CPI-linked assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value
The value of CPI-linked financial assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair
value is revalued in each period in accordance with the actual rate of increase /
decrease of the CPI.
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C. Financial instruments (Cont.)

Financial liabilities

The Group has non-derivative financial liabilities, such as overdraft from banks, debentures
issued by the Group, loans and credit from banking corporation and other credit providers,
liabilities with respect to leases, trade payables and other payables.

3.

A

Initial recognition of financial liabilities

The Group recognizes for the first time issued debt instruments on the date of their
creation, according to their fair value on the trade date.

Financial liabilities are recognized for the first time at fair value plus attributable
transaction costs. Following initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Transaction costs which are directly attributed to an expected issuance of an
instrument which will be classified as a financial liability are recognized as an asset
in the statement of financial position. These transaction costs are deducted from the
financial liabilities upon initial recognition, or are amortized as finance expenses in
the issuance when the issuance is no longer expected to occur. Upon an extension of
a debenture series for cash, the debentures are measured for the first time
according to their fair value, which is consideration which was received in the
issuance (since this is the best market to which the issuer has immediate access),
without any recognition of profit or loss with respect to the difference between
the issuance consideration and the market value of the marketable debentures
proximate to their issuance.

Write-off of financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the Group’s liabilities, as specified in the
agreement, expire, or when they have been settled or canceled.

Changes to terms of debt instruments

An exchange of debt instruments with materially different terms, between an existing
borrower and a lender, is treated as settlement of the original financial liability and
recognition of a new financial liability at fair value, while the difference is applied to
the statement of income in the item for finance income or expenses. Additionally,
significant changes in the terms of a current financial liability, or a part thereof, are
treated as a settlement of the original financial liability and as recognition of a new
financial liability.

The terms are significantly different even if the discounted present value of the cash
flows, according to the new terms, including any fees which were paid, after
deducting any fees which were received, and is discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is different by at least ten percent than the discounted present value of
the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
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C.

Financial instruments (Cont.)

3.

Financial liabilities (Cont.)
C.  Changes to terms of debt instruments (Cont.)
In addition to the quantitative test, as stated above, the Group also evaluates qualitative
considerations in order to determine whether it involves an exchange of conditions with
materially different terms, and as part of the above, an evaluation if performed regarding the
entire set of characteristics of the exchanged debt instruments and the economic parameters
embodied therein, which, if they are indeed significantly different from one another, may
create a different economic risk for the holder of the debt instruments upon their exchange.
These economic parameters include, inter alia, the average lifetime of the exchanged debt
instruments and the extent of impact of the debt terms (such as linkage to the CPI, linkage to
foreign currency, variable interest) on the cash flows from the instruments.
Immaterial changes to terms of debt instrument
In case of a change in terms (or exchange) of an immaterial debt instrument, the new cash
flows are discounted by the original effective interest rate, where the difference between the
present value of the financial liability with the new terms, and the present value of the original
financial liability, are recognized under profit and loss.
D. Offsetting of financial instruments
A financial asset and financial liability are offset, and the amounts are presented net in the
statement of financial position, when the Group has an immediately legally enforceable right
to offset the amounts which were recognized, and an intent to settle the asset and liability on
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Issuance of securities as a package
Upon the issuance of securities as a package, the issuance consideration is initially attributed to
financial liabilities which are measured periodically in fair value through profit and loss, and
subsequently, to financial liabilities which are measured on the date of initial recognition only at
fair value, and the value attributed to the equity component is calculated as residual value.
Direct issuance costs are specifically attributed to the securities with which they are identified. The
common issuance costs are attributed to the securities on a proportionate basis, based on the method
for attribution of the consideration from the issuance of the package, as described above.
Derivative financial instruments, including hedge accounting
The Group holds derivative financial instruments for the purpose of hedging against foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks, as well as derivatives which are not used for hedging purposes.
Measurement of derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value; Attributable transaction costs are carried to the
statement of income upon their materialization. After initial recognition, derivatives are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are accounted for as described below:
Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of a derivative financial instrument which is used in hedge transactions
are carried to the statement of income. Additionally, changes in fair value with respect to the hedged
item, with reference to the hedged risks, are also carried in parallel to the statement of income,
including an adjustment to the book value of the hedged item.
Economic hedge
Hedge accounting is not applied to derivative instruments which are used for economic hedging of
financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency or linked to the consumer price
index. Changes in the fair value of those derivatives are carried to the statement of income as
finance income or expenses.
Derivatives which are not used for hedging purposes
Changes in the fair value of derivatives which are not used for hedging purposes are carried to the
statement of income as finance income or expenses.
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D. Fixed assets

1.

Recognition and measurement
Fixed asset items are measured at cost after deducting accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of fixed assets includes costs which are directly attributed to the acquisition of the
asset. The cost of independently created assets includes the cost of materials and direct
work salary, as well as any additional cost which is directly attributed to the process of
introducing bringing the asset to the location and condition which are required in order to
for it to operate in the manner intended by management, as well as the estimate of
decommissioning costs and removal of the items and restoration of the site where the item
is located (when there is an obligation to dismantle and vacate, or to restore the site), as
well as discounted borrowing costs. Acquisition costs of software which constitutes an
inseparable part of the operation of the associated equipment is recognized as part of the
cost of such equipment. Replacement parts, auxiliary equipment and backup equipment are
classified as fixed assets when they meet the definition of fixed assets in accordance with
IAS 16 otherwise, they are classified as inventory.
When significant parts of fixed assets (including costs of significant periodic tests), such
as communication networks, have a different lifetime, they are treated as separate
components (significant components) of the fixed assets, and in the foregoing case, each
component is amortized according to its useful lifetime.
Changes in the obligation to dismantle and vacate items and to restore the site where they
are located, excluding changes which are due to the passage of time, are added or deducted,
as applicable from the cost of the asset, in the period when they occur. The amount which
is deducted from the cost of the asset will not exceed its book value, and the remainder, if
any, is applied immediately to the statement of income.
Subsequent costs
The cost to exchange a part of a fixed asset item and other subsequent costs are recognized
as part of the book value of fixed assets if it is expected that the future economic benefit
embodied therein will flow to the Group and if its cost is reliably measurable. The book
value of a part of the replaced part of the fixed asset item is derecognized. Current
maintenance costs of fixed asset items are applied to the statement of income upon their
materialization.
Depreciation
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the recoverable value of an asset throughout its
useful lifetime. An asset is depreciated when it is available for use, i.e., when it has reached
the location and condition which are required in order for it to operate in the manner
intended by management.
Depreciation is applied to the statement of income (unless it is included in the book value
of another asset) using the straight line method, throughout the estimated useful lifetime of
each part among the items of the fixed asset, since this method best reflects the projected
consumption pattern of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Assets leased
through leases, including lands and leasehold improvements, are depreciated over the
shortest period among the lease period and the useful lifetime of the assets, unless it is
reasonably expected that the Group will receive ownership of the asset at the end of the
lease period. Owned lands are not depreciated.
Costs of general economic renovations (overhaul) are amortized throughout the remaining
useful lifetime of the relevant asset, or until the date of the next overhaul, whichever is
earlier.
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D. Fixed assets (Cont.)

The estimated useful lifetime for the current reporting period and for the comparison
periods are as follows:

Years
Buildings 5-50 (mostly 20 years)
Machines, facilities and equipment 5-20 (mostly 15 years)
Computers, office furniture, 3-17 (mostly 15 years)
equipment and other
Telecommunication network 4-20 (mostly 12 years)
Equipment and telecommunication
infrastructure - landline network 3-6
Packaging plants 18-33  (mostly 25 years)
Installations and leasehold
improvements 3-17 (mostly 15 years)

Estimates with respect to the depreciation method, useful lifetime and residual value are
re-evaluated at least at the end of each reporting year, and are adjusted when required.

E. Intangible assets

1.

Goodwill

Goodwill which was created as a result of the acquisition of subsidiaries and the acquisition
of activities as part of business combinations is presented under intangible assets. For
details regarding the measurement of goodwill upon initial recognition, see section A.1.
above.

Subsequent measurement

Goodwill is measured at cost, after deducting accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Goodwill with respect to investments accounted by the equity method accounted by the
equity method in the book value of the investment.

Research and development

Expenses associated with research activities operations in order to acquire scientific or
technical knowledge and understanding are applied to the statement of income upon their
materialization.

Development activities are activities associated with plans to produce new products or
processes, or to implement a significant improvement of existing products or processes.
Costs with respect to development activities are recognized as an intangible asset if and
only if all of the following are fulfilled: the development costs are reliably measurable; the
product or process are applicable in technical and commercial terms; a future economic
benefit is expected to arise from the product; and the Group has the intention and sufficient
sources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.

Costs which were recognized as an intangible asset with respect to development activities
include the cost of materials, direct labor costs, overhead costs which are directly attributed
to preparation of the asset for its intended use, and discounted borrowing costs. Other costs
with respect to development activities are applied to the statement of income upon their
materialization.
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E.

Intangible assets (Cont.)

Direct and indirect development costs which are due to the development of information

system software for self use, and labor costs to employees who are engaged in the

development of software programs during the development stage, and overhead costs

which are directly attributable to the preparation of the asset for its intended use, are

discounted and recognized as an intangible asset. These costs are amortized using the

straight line method, beginning on the date when the asset becomes ready for use. With

respect to these assets, impairment is evaluated once per year, until the date when they

become available for use. Development costs which were previously recognized as an

expense are not recognized as an asset in subsequent periods. Capitalized development

costs are amortized from the point in time when the asset became available for use, i.e.,

when it entered the required location and condition in order for it to operate in the manner

intended by management, throughout its useful lifetime.

In subsequent periods, development costs which were recognized as an intangible asset are

measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Development assets which are not yet available for use are tested for impairment once per

year, in accordance with the provisions of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 36,

Impairment of Assets.

Incremental costs to obtain contract

The Group capitalizes into assets sale commissions to marketers with respect to sale

contracts, which would not have materialized has the sale contracts not been signed. The

commissions are recognized in the statement of income over the average customer lifetime

period.

Other intangible assets

A. Intangible assets which were acquired in a business combination are recognized at
fair value on the acquisition date. After initial recognition, intangible assets which
were acquired by the Group are measured at cost (including direct costs which are
required in order to prepare the assets for operation), after deducting accumulated
amortization (except with respect to intangible assets with an undefined lifetime), and
after deducting impairment loss.

B. Subsequent costs are recognized as an intangible asset only when they increase the
future economic benefit embodied in the asset with respect to which they were spent.
All other costs, including costs associated with goodwill or independently developed
brands, are applied to the statement of income upon their materialization.

C. Customer relations - excess cost attributed in subsidiaries to customer relations. These
customer relations have a defined lifetime.

D. Brand - excess cost attributed in subsidiaries to a brand. Some brands have a defined
undefined lifetime, while others have an undefined lifetime.
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E.

Intangible assets (Cont.)
Other intangible assets (Cont.)

4.

E.

Except for goodwill, and for some of the brands, which have an undefined lifetime,
amortization is calculated in accordance with the economic benefit which is expected
to arise from the assets in each period, based on the estimated useful lifetime of each
group of assets, from the date when the assets are available for use (i.e., are in the
location and condition required for them to operate). If an intangible asset includes
several components with different estimated useful lifetimes, the significant
components are amortized based on their estimated useful lifetimes. Intangible assets
which are created in the Group’s member companies are not systematically amortized
so long as they are not available for use. Therefore, with respect to intangible assets
which are not available for use, such as development costs, impairment is tested at
least once per year, until the date when they become available for use.

The estimated useful lifetimes for the current reporting period and for the comparative
periods of the main intangible assets are as follows:

_ Years

Customer relations 6-20 (mostly 6 years)

Licenses and frequencies 14-25 (mostly 25
years)

Information systems and software 4-6

programs

Technology, development in process, 0-33 (mostly non-

franchises and other amortized)

Contract obtaining costs 3-5

Brands and trade names 0-10 (mostly non-
amortized)

The systematic amortization of development in process, which was acquired in a
business combination, begins at the start of sales due to the developed technology.
The amortization period reflects the future useful lifetime, in accordance with the
estimate of the period when sales will result from the developed technology.
Estimates regarding the amortization method, useful lifetime and residual value are
re-evaluated at least at the end of each fiscal year, and are adjusted as required.
Goodwill, brands with undefined lifetimes and development in process with an
undefined lifetime are not systematically amortized, but rather are evaluated at least
once per year for impairment.

The estimated useful lifetime of intangible assets which are not amortized is evaluated
by the Group at least once per year in order to determine whether the events and
circumstances continue to support the determination that the intangible asset has an
undefined lifetime.
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F.

Investment property

Investment property is property (land or building - or part of a building - or both) which is held
by the Group, as the owner or as a right-of-use asset, for the purpose of generating rental income,
or for capital appreciation, or both, and not for any of the following purposes:

(1) Use in the production or provision of goods or services, or for administrative purposes: or
(2) Sale in the ordinary course of business.

Investment property is measured for the first time at cost, including discounted borrowing costs.
Cost includes expenses which are directly attributed to the acquisition of investment property.
The cost of investment property under self construction includes the cost of materials and direct
labor and other costs which are directly attributed to bringing the asset to the location in order
for it to operate in the manner intended by management. In subsequent periods, investment
property is measured at fair value, and changes in fair value are applied to the statement
of income.

Until the financial statements for the third quarter of 2022, the Group’s policy was not to
capitalize borrowing costs for investment property under construction which is measured at fair
value, when permitted according to the provisions of 1AS 23, Borrowing Costs, with respect to
qualifying assets measured at fair value.
Beginning with these financial statements, the Group changed its policy such that borrowing
costs are capitalized to investment property under construction measured at fair value (the “New
Accounting Policy”). The Company believes that the application of the new accounting policy
provides more reliable and relevant information, since the application of the new accounting
policy results in a situation whereby the cost basis of investment property under construction
includes the relevant costs which were used in the construction thereof, including the
capitalization of borrowing costs, and allows a better analysis of the true cost of the properties,
and the change in their value, particularly in periods of high interest rates and inflation.

The aforementioned change in policy had no significant impact in the reporting periods.

Investment property under construction is measured by the Group as follows:

(1) At fair value (without discounting borrowing costs), when the fair value of the investment
property under construction is reliably measurable; And -

(2) When the fair value is not reliably measurable, according to the fair value of the land, plus
cost during the construction period until the earlier of either the construction end date and
the date when they fair value is reliably measurable.

When a property used by the owner becomes investment property, to be measured at fair value,
the property is re-measured at fair value, and is classified as investment property. Any profit
created from the remeasurement is applied to other comprehensive income (loss), and is
presented under the revaluation reserve, unless the profit cancels a previous impairment loss of
the property, in which case the profit is first applied to profit and loss (up to the amount of the
previous impairment loss). Any loss is directly attributed to profit and loss. When investment
property which was classified in the past as fixed assets is sold, the revaluation reserve which is
included in capital with respect to the investment property is transferred directly to retained
earnings.
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F.

Investment property (Cont.)

Upon transition from investment property measured at fair value to fixed assets (property used
by owner), or to inventory, its cost for the purpose of the subsequent accounting treatment is
determined according to the fair value on the date of the aforementioned transition. In case of a
transition from inventory to investment property, which will be measured at fair value, any
difference between the fair value of the property on the same date and its previous book value is
applied directly to profit and loss.

The Group estimates the value of the investment property at least once per year, and when there
are indications of changes in its value (whichever is earlier). The liability with respect to the
payment of land betterment levies for investment property is recognized on the exercise date of
the rights. Accordingly, as part of the measurement of fair value for investment property before
the recognition of liabilities to pay land betterment levies, the negative cash flows attributed to
the levies are included.

Right-of-use assets which meet the definition of investment property are presented in the
statement of financial position as investment property.

The Group applies the fair value model set forth in IAS 40 with respect to its investment
property, and accordingly, the Group applies the fair value model also to right-of-use assets
which meet the definition of investment property in IAS 40.

Leases

The group leases lands, telecommunication sites, buildings, machines, equipment and vehicles.
The lease agreements are in force for various periods, and may include extension options.

The Group’s policy with respect to leases in which the Group is the lessee: The Group assesses,
when engaging in the contract, whether the contract is a lease or includes a lease. A contract is
a lease or includes a lease if the contract transfers the right to control the use of an identifiable
asset for a certain period of time, in respect of consideration. The Group re-assesses whether a
contract is a lease or includes a lease only if the contract terms have changed.

With respect to lease contracts in the mobile segment, in the group of telecommunication sites
which include non-lease components, such as services or maintenance, which are associated
with a lease component, the Group chose to treat the contract as a single lease component,
without separating the components.

With respect to lease contracts in groups of office buildings, warehouses, service centers and
vehicles which include non-lease components, such as services or maintenance, which are
associated with a lease component, the Group chose to separate the lease components, and to
treat the lease component separately.

On the date of initial recognition, the Group recognizes a lease liability in the amount of the
present value of the future lease payments, including, inter alia, the price of exercising the
extension options which are reasonably certain to be exercised.

In parallel, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset in the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted for any lease payments which have been paid on or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives which have been received, and plus any initial direct costs which have
materialized for the Group.

Variable lease payments which are linked to the consumer price index are initially measured
using the index which applies as at the lease commencement date, and are included in the
calculation of the lease liability. When changes occur in the cash flows of the lease due to
changes to the index, the Group remeasures the lease liability according to the updated
contractual cash flows, as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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G. Leases (Cont.)
Variable lease payments which are not linked to an index or foreign currency are not included
in the calculation of the lease liability, and are recognized in the statement of income in the
period when the event occurred, or when the condition which activated those payments was
fulfilled.
In cases where the interest rate implicit in the lease can be easily determined, the incremental
interest rate of the Group’s member company which leases the property is used. This interest
rate is the rate which the lessee would have been required to pay in order to borrow, for a similar
period, and with similar collateral, the amounts which are required in order to obtain an asset
with a similar value to that of the right-of-use assets in a similar economic environment.
The lease period is the period during which the lease is non-cancelable, including periods which
are covered by an option to extend the lease, if it is reasonably certain that the Group will
exercise the option, as well as periods which are covered by an option to cancel the lease, if it
reasonably certain that the Group will not exercise that option.
The Group re-evaluates the lease period upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances, which is under the Group’s control, and which affects the
decision regarding whether it is reasonably certain that the Group will exercise an option which
was not previously included in the determination of the lease period, or will not exercise an
option which was not previously included in the determination of the lease period. In case of
changes to the period when the lease is non-cancelable, the Group updates the lease period and
remeasures the lease liability by discounting the updated lease payments using an updated
discount rate. In general, the difference between the balance of the lease liability before the
change in the lease period, and the updated balance of the lease liability, is recognized against
adjustment of the right-of-use asset.
After the lease commencement date, the Group measures right-of-use assets which do not meet
the definition of investment property at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The amortization of right-of-use assets which are not investment property is calculated
according to the straight line method, throughout the estimated useful lifetime of the leased asset
or of the lease period, whichever is shorter.

Years
Telecommunication sites 5-15 (mostly 5 years)
Buildings 1-24 (mostly 10 years)
Vehicles 3
Land for orchards 30-39 (mostly 30
years)

As stated above, right-of-use assets which meet the definition of investment property are
presented in the statement of financial position as investment property.

The interest on lease liabilities is recognized in the statement of income in each period during
the lease period, in an amount which generates a fixed periodic interest rate on the remaining
balance of the lease liability.

Payments with respect to short-term leases of equipment and vehicles, and payments with
respect to leases in which the underlying asset is of a low value, are recognized according
to the straight line method throughout the lease period, as an expense in the statement of
income. Short-term leases are leases in which the lease period, on the commencement date,
is 12 months or less.
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G. Leases (Cont.)
In leases where the group sub-leases the asset, the Group classifies the sublease with respect to
the right-of-use asset which is due to the primary lease, and not with respect to the underlying
asset.
The Group’s policy with respect to leases in which the group is the lessee: When assets are
leased out by the Group to others within the framework of an operating lease, they are included
in the statement of financial position in accordance with their characteristics, and are amortized
over their expected useful lifetimes, consistently relative to similar assets which are used in the
Group. Rental income is recognized throughout the lease period on a straight-line basis.

H. Deferred expenses
Investments in holding orchards
The Group’s investments in holding orchards (which also include irrigation systems) are
attributed to customer orchards which are transferred, in their entirety, to the Group’s possession,
as part of a multi-year agreement between the parties. In consideration of the turnover from the
fruit, the Group covers the operating expenses of those orchards. Additionally, if the agreement
S0 prescribes - an agreed-upon additional sum is paid to the customer.
Orchard processing agreements - are amortized from the date of their creation throughout the
remaining period of the agreement, up to 23 years, at variable rates of approximately 0.7% to
6% per year.
Transactions for the acquisition of irrevocable rights of use with respect to the capacity of
submarine communication cables
Transactions involving the acquisition of irrevocable rights of use with respect to the capacity
of submarine communication cables are treated as service receipt transactions. The amount
which was paid with respect to the use of the communication cables is recognized as a deferred
expense, and is amortized in a straight line over the period specified in the agreement, which
constitutes the estimated useful lifetime of those capacities.

I.  Expenses associated with processing orchards in advance
Orchard processing expenses which are used in order to bring the fruit to its current location and
condition, with respect to unharvested fruit until the cutoff date, are recorded as pre-processing
expenses, and are carried to the statement of income based on the amount of fruit which was
harvested until the cutoff date, which constitutes an approximation of the fruit sale rate. Fixed
expenses are carried to the statement of income at the beginning of each season, while direct and
variable expenses are carried to the statement of income according to the progress on harvesting
the fruit during the season.
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J.

Inventory of cellphones and inventory used for landline communication

The inventory of cellphones, associated devices and replacement parts is presented at cost or at
net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost is determined according to the moving average
method, and includes costs to acquire inventory and to bring it to its current location and
condition. The net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, after deducting the costs required to perform the sale.

The Group periodically evaluates the condition and age of inventory, and records provisions for
impairment of inventory as needed.

Sale of inventory of real estate and residential apartments

Inventory of real estate and residential apartments is measured as the lower of either cost and
the net realizable value. Cost of inventory includes costs required to acquire the inventory
(including prepaid lease fees) and to bring it to its current location and condition. In case of in-
process inventory and inventory of completed buildings, cost includes the attributed part of
construction overhead. The net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, after deducting the estimated cost to completion and the estimated costs
required to perform the sale.

In subsequent periods, with respect to apartments which have been sold, the inventory of
real estate and residential apartments is carried to the cost of sales, in accordance with the
rate of progress.

Real estate inventory which is acquired by the Group in a combination transaction in exchange
for the provision of construction services to the seller of the land is recognized according to its
fair value on the date when the terms of the agreement allow the Group to receive possession of
the land, in parallel with the recognition of the undertaking to provide construction services. In
cases where the value of the land is not reliably measurable, the Group estimates the fair value
of the construction services which are given to the land owner.

In subsequent periods, the aforementioned liability is adjusted in order to reflect the significant
financing component which is represented in the transaction.The undertaking to provide
construction services and real estate inventory are applied to income and cost of sales,
respectively, in accordance with the rate of progress on the building in its entirety.

Real estate inventory which is purchased by the Group in a receipts combination transaction, in
which the Group undertakes to transfer cash according to the sale price of the apartments which
will be built on the land, is measured according to the value of the financial liability which was
created with respect to the expected future payments.

In subsequent periods, the financial liability is remeasured in accordance with the cash
flows which are expected to be paid, discounted periodically by the original effective
interest rate of the liability, and the change is recognized in the statement of income.
Method for allocation of costs to inventory of apartments in the entrepreneurial real estate
segment

The Group attributes the costs to each sale agreement separately, as described below:

o Identifiable direct costs are allocated specifically to each apartment.

e Land costs (including fees, levies and finance with respect to land) are attributed to
each contract according to the selling price less construction costs with respect to the
price of all apartments in the building, less construction costs.

e The other shared construction costs which are not attributable to a specific apartment
are allocated according to the apartment area and the construction cost per square
meter with respect to the building in its entirety.
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L.

Inventory of fruit, pest control materials and packaging materials

The inventory of fruit, packaging materials and pest control materials is measured as the lower

of either cost or the net realizable value. The cost of inventory is determined as follows:

(1) Inventory of fruit - according to the fruit’s purchase cost, or the cost which was invested in
growing items which were transferred from biological assets, which reflect the fair value
net of selling costs on the delivery date, plus other direct expenses.

(2) Inventory of packaging and pest control materials - according to the first in - first out (FIFO)
approach.

The cost of inventory includes costs to acquire inventory and to bring it to its current location
and condition. The net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, after deducting the estimated cost to completion and the estimated costs required to
perform the sale.
Discounting of borrowing costs
A qualifying asset is an asset regarding which a significant period of time is necessary in order
to prepare it for its intended use, or for its sale.
Specific and non-specific borrowing costs were discounted for qualifying assets during the
period required for completion and construction, until the date they are ready for their intended
use or for their sale. Other borrowing costs are charged, upon their materialization, to finance
expenses in the statement of income.
In the real estate segment, specific borrowing costs and non-specific borrowing costs were
discounted for qualifying assets during the period required for completion and construction, until
the date they are ready for their intended use. Non-specific borrowing costs are discounted in
the same manner for the same investment in qualifying assets, or for that part thereof which is
not financed with specific credit, using a rate which is the weighted average of the cost rates
with respect to those credit sources whose costs were not specifically discounted. Exchange
differences due to credit in foreign currency are discounted if they are considered adjustments
to the interest cost. Other borrowing costs are carried to the statement of income upon their
materialization.

In case the development of a qualifying asset is suspended, the discounting of borrowing costs

is suspended during that period.

In inventory of buildings for sale, wherein the control of the sold apartments is transferred over

time, the Group stops discounting borrowing costs on the date when the construction and sale of

the project effectively began, which constitutes the date when the activities required for the sale
effectively concluded.

47



DIC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

O.

Impairment
1.

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group recognizes a loss provision with respect to expected credit losses for financial assets

which constitute debt instruments measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other

comprehensive income, lease receivables and assets with respect to contracts with customers

due to transactions which fall under the scope of IFRS 15.

Impairment of a financial asset which constitutes a debt instrument at fair value through other

comprehensive income is recognized in the statement of income against other comprehensive

income, and does not reduce the financial asset’s book value in the statement of financial

position.

The Group evaluates, on each date of the statement of financial position, whether a significant

increase has occurred in the financial asset’s credit risk since its date of initial recognition, on

an individual basis or on a collective basis. For this purpose, the Group compares the risk of

default in the financial instrument on the reporting date, to the risk of a default in the financial

instrument on the date of initial recognition, while taking into account any reasonable

information which can be substantiated, including forward looking information.

With respect to financial assets whose credit risk has increased significantly, on their date of

initial recognition, the Group measures the loss provision in an amount equal to the expected

credit loss throughout the instrument’s entire lifetime. Otherwise, the loss provision will be

measured in an amount equal to the expected credit losses in a 12 month period. The amount

(or cancellation) of projected credit differences is carried to the statement of income.

With respect to financial instruments with a low credit risk, the Group assumes that the credit

risk has not increased significantly since the date of initial recognition.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group always measures the loss provision in an amount

equal to the expected credit loss throughout the instrument’s entire lifetime, for trade

receivables or assets with respect to contracts with customers which are due to

transactions covered under IFRS 15, and for lease receivables arising from transactions

covered under IFRS 16.

Non-financial assets

A. Timing of impairment test
The book value of non-financial assets in the Group m which are not investment property,
inventory and deferred tax assets, is evaluated on each reporting date in order to determine
whether indicators of impairment exist. The aforementioned indicators which are
evaluated by the Group with respect to the value of the investments include a decrease in
prices on the stock exchange, ongoing losses in its investments, the branch where it
performs its investing activities, the excess cost included in the investments, non-
fulfillment of research and development goals or of the business plans of investee
companies, and additional parameters.
If indicators of impairment exist, the estimated recoverable value of the asset is calculated.
The Group estimates the recoverable value of goodwill and intangible assets with an
undefined lifetime or which are not yet available for use, once per year, on a fixed date
for each cash generating unit, or more frequently, if indicators of impairment exist.

B. Determination of cash generating units
For the purpose of implementing the impairment test, assets which cannot be specifically
evaluated are joined together into the smallest possible group of assets which generate
cash flows from ongoing use, which are primarily independent of other assets and other
groups of assets (“Cash Generating Unit”).
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O.

Impairment (Cont.)
2.

Non-financial assets (Cont.)

C.

Measurement of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the higher of either its
value in use or its fair value, after deducting selling expenses. In the determination of
value in use, the Group discounts the projected future cash flows which reflect the
current condition of the asset, and represent the best estimate with respect to the
economic conditions which will prevail during the asset’s remaining useful lifetime.
The discounting of cash flows with respect to a cash generating unit is performed
according to the discount rate before taxes, which reflects the estimate of market
participants with respect to the time value of money and the specific risks attributed
to the asset or cash generating unit, for which the future cash flows which are expected
to arise from the asset or cash generating unit were not adjusted. In the impairment
test of associate companies and joint ventures, cash flows are discounted according to
the appropriate discount rate after tax.

Recognition of impairment loss

Impairment losses are recognized when the book value of the asset, or of the cash
generating unit with which the asset is associated, exceeds the recoverable amount,
and are carried to the statement of income. Impairment loss of an asset which was
revalued in the past, with the revaluation carried to a capital reserve, are carried to
other comprehensive income until the principal has been repaid, while the remainder
is carried to the statement of income.

Goodwill purchased within the framework of a business combination is allocated for
the impairment test of cash generating units, including those which existed in the
Group also before the business combination, which are expected to create benefits
from the synergy of the combination.

Each unit or group of units to which the aforementioned goodwill was allocated
represents the lowest level in the Group at which goodwill is monitored for the
purpose of reporting to internal management, and is no greater than an operating
segment (according to the group of similar segments).

In cases where goodwill is not monitored for the purpose of internal reporting, the
goodwill is allocated to operating segments (before grouping similar segments), and
not to a cash generating unit (or group of cash generating units) which is lower than
the operating segments.Impairment loss, if any, is allocated to decrease the book value
of the assets of the unit (or group of units) in the following order: first, to decrease the
book value of any goodwill which was allocated to the cash generating unit (or group
of units), and then to the other assets of the unit (or group of units), proportionately
according to the book value of each asset in the unit (or group of units).

For the purpose of applying the impairment test of goodwill attributed to cash
generating units which are also held by non-controlling interests, which were
measured for the first time according to the proportional part of those interests in the
net assets of the acquired entity, the book value of the goodwill and the other excess
costs which were allocated to the aforementioned cash generating unit are grossed up
in order to include the goodwill and other excess costs which are attributed to the non-
controlling interests. Subsequently, a comparison is performed between the
aforementioned adjusted book value and the recoverable value of that unit, in order to
determine whether its value has been impaired.
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O.

3.

Impairment (Cont.)
2.

Non-financial assets (Cont.)
Goodwill and other excess costs are represented according to the stake in the entity to
which they are attributed on January 1, 2010, or on the original date of recognition,
whichever is later, and without taking into account control premiums, insofar as any
are included in the balances of goodwill.
Allocation of impairment loss to non-controlling interests
If impairment loss has been identified in a cash generating unit, as stated above, the
impairment loss is allocated between the owners of the Company and non-controlling
interests according to their relative shares in the goodwill and the other excess costs
to which the impairment loss is attributed, before representation, as stated above.
However, if impairment loss attributed to non-controlling interests refers to goodwill
or to other excess costs which were not recognized in the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company, the aforementioned impairment is not recognized
as impairment loss. In such cases, only impairment loss pertaining to goodwill and
other excess costs which were recognized in the Company’s financial statements are
recognized as impairment loss.
Reversal of impairment loss
Impairment loss of goodwill is not reversed. With respect to other assets, for which
impairment losses were recognized in previous periods, on each financial reporting
date, a test is performed regarding whether indicators exist that such losses have
decreased, or no longer exist. Impairment loss is reversed if changes have occurred in
the estimates which were used in the determination of the recoverable amount, only if
the asset’s book value, after reversal of the impairment loss, does not exceed its book
value, after deducting depreciation or amortization, which would have been
determined had impairment loss not been recognized.
Investments in associate companies and joint ventures
An impairment test with respect to an investment in an associate company or joint venture
is performed only where there is objective evidence indicating impairment. Such objective
evidence includes general information regarding the market, decline in stock exchange
prices, ongoing losses in its investments the branch in which its investing activities take
place, non-fulfillment of research and development goals of investee companies,
significant deviation from the business plan of the investee companies, efforts to raise
capital at a lower price than the value of the investment in the financial statements, and
additional parameters.
Goodwill which constitutes a part of the account of the investment in the associate company
or joint venture is not recognized as a separate asset, and therefore, impairment is not
evaluated separately for it.
If objective evidence exists indicating impairment of the value of the investment, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the investment which is the higher of either its value
in use or its net selling price.
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O.

Impairment (Cont.)
In its determination of the investment’s value in use, the Group estimates its share in the
present value of the estimated future cash flows, which are expected to be generated by the
associate company or joint venture, including cash flows from its activities, and the
consideration from the ultimate realization of the investment, or estimates the present value
of the estimated future cash flows which are expected to result from the dividends which
will be received, and from the final realization.
Impairment loss is recognized when the book value of the investment, after application of
the equity method, exceeds the recoverable amount, and is applied to the item for the
Group’s share in the loss of investee companies accounted by the equity method, net,
in the statement of income.
Impairment loss is not allocated to any asset, including to goodwill which constitutes a part
of the account of the investment in the associate company or joint venture.
Impairment loss is canceled only if changes have occurred in the estimates which were
used in the determination of the recoverable amount of the investment, from the date when
the impairment loss was most recently recognized. The book value of the investment, after
cancellation of impairment loss, will not exceed the book value of the investment which
would have been determined according to the equity method had impairment loss not been
recognized.
If excess costs are attributed to assets in the associate company or to assets in the joint
venture, and the aforementioned company performs an amortization for impairment with
respect to such assets, the Company amortizes the aforementioned attributed excess costs,
and applies the amortization to the statement of income.

Non-current assets and realization groups held for sale

Non-current assets (or realization groups which are comprised of assets and liabilities) are
classified as assets held for sale if it is highly probable that the recoupment of their amount will
be implemented primarily through a sale transaction or a distribution to owners, and through
ongoing use. When a company is committed to a sale plan which involves loss of control of a
subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities which are attributed to the subsidiary are classified as
held for sale, will bear the Company will remain with any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before their classification as held for sale, the assets (or the components of the
disposal group) are measured according to the Group’s accounting policy. Subsequently, the
assets, the components of the realization group (or the Group which is intended for realization)
are measured according to the lower of either book value or fair value, net of selling costs.

Any impairment loss of a group designated for realization is initially attributed to goodwill, and
later, proportionately, to the remaining assets and liabilities, except that loss is not attributed to
assets which are not covered under the measurement provisions of IFRS 5, such as: inventory,
financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit plan assets, investment property measured
at fair value. Impairment losses which are recognized upon initial classification of an asset held
for sale, as well as subsequent profit or loss due to the remeasurement, are applied to the
statement of income. Profit is recognized up to the cumulative amount of the impairment loss
which was recorded in the past.

In subsequent periods, depreciable assets classified as held for sale are not periodically
depreciated, and investments in associate companies and joint ventures which are classified as
held for sale are not accounted by the equity method.

Discontinued operations
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P.

R.

Non-current assets and realization groups held for sale (Cont.)

Discontinued operations are a component of the Group’s business operations which constitutes
an operation which was realized or which is classified as held for sale, as stated above, and
represents a significant separate business line, or a geographical area of an activity which is
significant and separate. The classification as a discontinued operation is implemented on the
date when the operation was realized, or when it meets the criteria for classification as held for
sale, if this occurred previously.

Operating results which refer to discontinued operations are presented separately in the
statement of income after deducting the tax impact, and also with respect to comparative figures
which were restated for this purpose, as if the operation had been discontinued from the start of
the earliest comparison period. Additionally, the Company presents the cash flows which are
attributed to a discontinued operation separately in the statements of cash flows, including
reclassification of the comparative figures. On this matter, see Note 12 below.

Share capital

Ordinary shares
Costs which are directly attributed to an issuance of ordinary shares and share warrants are
presented as an amortization of capital.
Treasury shares
When share capital which was recognized under equity is re-purchased by the Company, the
amount of consideration which was paid, including direct costs, is deducted from equity. The
repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares. When treasury shares are sold or re-
issued, the difference between the consideration which was received and the cost of the shares
is carried to equity, after deducting incremental costs which are directly attributable to the
transaction.
Employee benefits
1. Post-employment benefits
The Group has several post-employment benefit plans for employees. The plans are
generally financed by deposits to insurance companies or pension funds, and are classified
as defined deposit plans and as defined benefit plans.
A. Defined deposit plans
A defined deposit plan is a post-employment plan according to which the Group pays
fixed payments to a separate entity without having a legal or implicit obligation to pay
additional payments. The Group’s obligations to deposit in a defined deposit plan are
applied as an expense to profit and loss on the date when the obligation to deposit
materializes.
B. Defined benefit plan
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan which is not a defined
deposit plan. A net obligation of the Group which pertains to a defined benefit plan
with respect to post-employment benefits, with respect to each plan separately,
according to an estimate of the future amount of the benefit which will be owed to an
employee in consideration of their services, in the current period and in previous
periods. This benefit is presented according to present value, after deducting the fair
value of the plan assets.
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R.

Employee benefits (Cont.)

The Group determines the net interest on the liability (asset), net, with respect to a
defined benefit, by multiplying the liability (asset), bet, with respect to that defined
benefit, by the discount rate which was used in the measurement of the liability with
respect to that defined benefit, as both were determined at the start of the annual
reporting period.

The discount rate is determined according to the yield, as at the reporting date, of high
quality CPI-linked corporate debentures whose currency is the NIS, and whose
repayment dates are similar to the terms of the Group’s liabilities on the same date.
The calculations are conducted each year by a licensed actuary, according to the
projected unit credit method.

When the results of the calculation indicate the creation of a net asset for the Group,
an asset is recognized up to the net amount of the present value of available economic
benefits in the form of reimbursement from the plan or reduction in future deposits to
the plan. An economic benefit in the form of reimbursements or reduction of future
deposits will be considered available to the Group when it is realizable during the
plan’s lifetime, or after the liability has been settled.

Remeasurement of the liability (asset), net, with respect to a defined benefit, includes
actuarial profit and loss, return on plan assets (excluding interest), and any change in
the impact on the asset ceiling (as relevant, excluding interest). Re-measurements
are applied immediately through other comprehensive income directly to
retained earnings.

Interest costs with respect to a defined benefit liability, interest income with
respect to plan assets and interest with respect to the impact of the asset ceiling
which were applied to the statement of income are presented under the items for
finance income and expenses, respectively.

If an improvement or decrease has occurred in the benefits provided by the Group to
employees, that part of the increased benefits pertaining to the past service of the
employees, or profit or loss from the reduction, are immediately recognized in profit
or loss when the amendment or reduction of the plan occurs.

The Group recognizes profit or loss from the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs. Profit or loss, as stated above, constitutes the difference
between the settled part of the present value of the defined benefit liability on the
settlement date, and the settlement price, including plan assets which were transferred.
The Group has managers’ insurance policies which were issued before 2004, and in
accordance with the policy terms, the real balance of profit which accrued on the
severance pay component will be paid to the employee on the date of retirement. With
respect to such policies, the plan assets include both the balance of the severance pay
component and the real balance of profit which accrued (if any) on deposits to
severance pay, until the date of the statement of financial position, and they are
presented at fair value.

These plan assets are used for a defined benefit plan which includes two liability
components: the defined benefit plan component with respect to the severance pay,
which is calculated on an actuarial basis, as stated above, and an additional component
which is the undertaking to pay the real balance of profit which has accrued (if any)
on the date of the employee’s retirement. This component is measured in the amount
of the real balance of profit which has actually accrued as at the reporting date.
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Employee benefits (Cont.)

2.

Other long term employee benefits

The Group’s net liability with respect to long term employee benefits, which are not
attributed to post-employment benefit plans, is in the amount of the future benefit owed to
the employees with respect to services which were provided in the current period and in
previous periods. The amount of these benefits is capitalized to its present value, less the
fair value of the assets attributed to that liability.

The discount rate is determined according to the yield, as at the reporting date, of high
quality CPI-linked corporate debentures whose currency is the NIS, and whose repayment
dates are similar to the terms of the Group’s liabilities on the same date. The calculation is
performed using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial profit and loss are applied to
the statement of income for the period when they were created.

Severance benefits

Severance benefits are recognized as an expense when the Group has clearly committed,
with no real possibility of cancellation, to the dismissal of employees, before they have
reached the conventional retirement date in accordance with a detailed formal plan, or to
provide severance benefits as a result of an offer which was made to encourage voluntary
retirement. Benefits which were given to employees with respect to voluntary retirement
are applied as an expense when the Group has offered to employees a plan which
encourages voluntary retirement, and when it is expected that the offer will be accepted and
when the number of employees accepting the offer is reliably measurable.

Short term employee benefits

Liabilities with respect to short term employee benefits are measured on a non-discounted
basis, and the expense is applied upon provision of the relevant service, or in case of non-
accumulated absences (such as maternity leave) - in case of actual absence.

A provision with respect to short term employee benefits due to a cash bonus or a profit
sharing plan is recognized according to the amount which is expected to be paid when the
Group has a current legal or implicit liability to pay the aforementioned amount with respect
to service which was given by the employee in the past, and when the liability is reliably
measurable. The classification of employee benefits for purposes of measurement as short
term benefits, or as other long term benefits, is determined according to the Group’s
forecast regarding the full settlement of the benefits.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value on the grant date of share-based payments to employees is carried as a payroll
expense, in parallel the increase in retained earnings during the vesting period, the
period in which a requirement applies to fulfill all of the defined conditions for the vesting
of the share-based payment arrangement.

The amount which was applied as an expense with respect to share-based payment bonuses,
which are conditional upon vesting terms which constitute service terms, was adjusted in
order to reflect the number of bonuses which are expected to vest.
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Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Group has a current legal or implicit liability, as a result of
an event which occurred in the past, and which is reliably measurable, and when it is more likely
than not that resources will be required in order to settle the liability. The provisions were
determined by discounting future the cash flows by the interest rate before tax which reflects
the current market estimates regarding the time value of money and the specific risks of
the liability, without taking into account the credit risk of the debtor company. The book
value of the provision is adjusted in each period in order to reflect the passage of time. The
amount of the adjustment is recognized as finance expenses.
The Group recognizes an indemnification asset if and only if it is virtually certain that the
indemnification will be received if the Company settles the liability. The amount which is
recognized with respect to the indemnification does not exceed the amount of the provision.
1.  Warranty
The provision for warranty is recognized when the products or service, with respect to
which the warranty was given, are sold. The provision is based on historical data and on
the weighing of all possible results, including their probabilities.
2. Onerous contracts
When the unavoidable costs with respect to the contract are expected to exceed the
expected benefits from the contract, an onerous contract provision is recognized. The
provision is measured according to the lower of either the present value of the projected
cost to terminate the agreement, and the present value of the unavoidable costs (net of
income) to continue fulfilling the agreement. see also Note Y.1. below for details regarding
the amendment to 1AS 37 with respect to onerous contracts. Unavoidable costs are costs
which the Company cannot avoid, since it is bound by a contract.
When the total contract costs are expected to exceed the total contract income, the expected
loss should be recognized as an expense immediately.
The amount of such loss is determined without taking into account the following factors:
(A) Whether work in connection with the agreement has commenced,
(B) The completion stage of the activities in connection with the agreement;
(C) The amount of profits which are expected to be created with respect to other contracts
which are not treated as a single construction contract.
Expected contract losses are identified with respect to expected contract costs, i.e., the total
contract completion costs (including loading indirect costs).
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3.

Contingent liabilities and legal claims

Legal claims with unique characteristics are not joined together, and the need for
recognition of provisions with respect to them is evaluated separately.

A claims is recognized when group the Group has a legal obligation in the present, or an
implicit liability as a result of an event which occurred in the past, when it is more likely
than not that the Group will require its economic resources in order to settle the liability,
and when it is reliably measurable.

When the impact of the value of time is significant, the provision is measured in accordance
with its present value. The amount of the provisions which were performed is based on an
estimate of the degree of risk associated with each of the claims, when events which take
place during the litigation may require a re-evaluation of such risk.

In estimates regarding the chances of legal claims which were filed against the Company
and its investee companies, the companies rely on the opinions of their legal advisors.
These opinions of the legal advisors are based on their best professional judgment, in
consideration of the stage of the proceedings, and on their accumulated legal experience
on the various issues. The results of the claims will be determined in the courts.

The Group is involved in legal proceedings which were recently filed, although at this stage
it is not possible to estimate their chances (see also Note 22.C. below).

A provision with respect to unasserted claims is recognized in accordance with the claim’s
overall chances of success, if filed, against the Group’s member companies (which is based
on the probability of the filing of the claim and the claim’s chances of success).

Expenses payable with respect to fruit purchases

Once the fruit is accepted for packaging, an advance is paid to Migdal with respect to the
fruit, depending on the fruit’s variety and quality. Additionally, a provision is made to
supplement the price according to costing data which was available to the Group as at the
cutoff date, in order to set the expense according to the full price of the fruit. The provisions
are included under the item for payables with respect to fruit purchasing, under the payables
section.

T. Revenue

1.

Identification of contract

The Group handles a customer contract only upon fulfillment of all of the following

conditions:

(A) The parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, verbally or in
accordance with other standard business practices), and are obligated to fulfill the
undertakings which have been assigned to them;

(B) The Group is able to identify the rights of each party, with respect to the products or
services which will be transferred;

(C) The Group is able to identify the payment terms with respect to the goods or services
which will be transferred;

(D) The contract is of a commercial nature (in other words, the risk, timing and amount
of the entity’s future cash flows are expected to be changed as a result of the contract);
and

(E) The Group is expected to collect the consideration which it is entitled to receive with
respect to the goods or services which will be transferred to the customer.
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For the purpose of determining the fulfillment of condition (E), the Group evaluates, inter

alia, the percentage of advance payments which were received, and the method for

distribution of payments in the contract, prior experience with the customer, its situation,

and the existence of sufficient collateral.

When a customer contract does not meet the above criteria, any consideration which has

been received from the customer is recognized as a liability until the foregoing conditions

have been met, or upon the occurrence of one of the following events: there are no

commitments left for the Group to transfer goods or services to the customer, and the entire

consideration which was guaranteed by the customer has been received, and cannot be

returned; or the contract was canceled, and the consideration which was received from the

customer cannot be returned.

2.  Grouping of contracts

The Group groups two or more contracts which were entered into on the same date, or on

a proximate date, with the same customer (or with related parties of the customer), and

handles them as a single contract, upon the fulfillment of one or more of the following

criteria:

(A) Negotiations regarding the contracts are conducted as a single package, with a single
commercial purpose;

(B) The total consideration which will be paid in one contract depends on the price or
performance of the other contract; or

(C) The goods or services which were guaranteed in the contracts (or certain goods or
services which were guaranteed in each of the contracts) constitute a single
performance obligation.

3. Identification of performance obligations

The Group estimates, on the date of entry into the agreement, the goods or services which

were guaranteed in a contract with the customer, and identifies as a performance obligation

any guarantee to transfer to the customer one of the following two things:

(A) Goods or services (or a package of goods or services) which are separate; or

(B) A series of separate goods or services which are effectively identical, and which have
the same pattern of transfer to the customer.

The Group identifies goods or services which have been guaranteed to the customer as

separate, when the customer is able to derive benefit from the goods or services themselves,

or along with other resources which are easily obtainable by the customer, and when the

Group’s guarantee to transfer the goods or services to the customer is identifiable

separately from the other guarantees in the contract. In order to evaluate whether a

guarantee to transfer goods or services is separately identifiable, the Group evaluates

whether a material service is provided involving combining the goods or services with

other goods or services which were guaranteed in the contract, into a combined product for

which the customer entered into the contract.

Option to purchase additional goods or services

An option which gives a customer the right to purchase additional goods or services

constitutes a separate performance obligation in the contract only if the option gives the

customer a significant right which it would not have received had it not entered into the

original contract.
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Determination of the transaction price
The transaction price is the total consideration which the Group expects to be entitled to
receive in consideration of the transfer of goods or services which have been guaranteed to
the customer, except for amounts which were collected in favor of third parties. When
determining the transaction price, the Group takes into account the effects of all of the
following: variable consideration, the existence of a significant financing component in the
contract, non-cash consideration and consideration payable to the customer.

4.  Variable consideration

The transaction price includes fixed amounts and amounts which may change as a result of
discounts, reimbursements, credits, price concessions, incentives, performance bonuses,
claims and disputes, as well as changes to the contract, whose consideration has been
agreed upon by the parties.
The Group includes, in the transaction price, all or part of the variable consideration, only
when it is highly probable that significant cancellation of the total cumulative income
which was recognized will not occur, when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration will be found out later on. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates, if necessary, the estimated total of the variable consideration which was included
in the consideration for the transaction.
In the retail segment, variable consideration is primarily due to volume discounts
which the group offers to its customers. The Group estimates the amount of variable
consideration by using the most likely amount method, since this method best
describes the amount of consideration which it will be entitled to receive.
Existence of a significant financing component
For the purpose of measuring the transaction price, the Group adjusts the total consideration
which was guaranteed with respect to the effect of the time value of money, if the timing
of the payments, which was agreed upon between the parties, provides to the customer or
the Group a significant benefit in terms of financing, in which cases the contract includes
a significant financing component. In the assessment of whether a contract includes a
significant financing component, the Group evaluates, inter alia, the forecasted time
between the date when the Group transfers the goods or services which were guaranteed to
the customer, and the date when the customer pays for those goods or services, as well as
the difference, if any, between the total guaranteed consideration, and the selling price in
cash of the guaranteed goods or services.
When the contract includes a significant financing component, the Group recognizes the
total consideration using the discount rate which would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between it and the customer, on the date of the agreement. The financing
component is recognized as interest income or expense during the period according to the
effective interest method.
In cases where the difference between the date of receipt of payment, and the date
when the goods or service are transferred to the customer is one year or less, the
Group applies the practical expedient set forth in the standard, and does not separate
a significant financing component.
Non-cash consideration
Non-cash consideration is measured at fair value. When it is not possible to reasonably
measurable the fair consideration’s value, the Group indirectly measures the consideration
with respect to the separate selling price of the goods or services which were guaranteed to
the customer.
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5.

Date of revenue recognition (fulfillment of performance obligation)
Income is recognized when the Group fulfills a performance obligation by transferring the
control of goods or services which were guaranteed to the customer.
Measurement of progress on the fulfillment of a performance obligation
When measuring the progress of performance using a method which is based on inputs,
cost which has materialized and is not proportional to the progress on the fulfillment of the
performance obligation is not taken into account in the measurement of the completion
rate. In such cases, the Group recognizes revenue in an amount equal to the cost of goods
which were used to fulfill the performance obligation (performance obligation, zero
margin), upon the fulfillment of the following conditions: the goods are not separate; The
customer is expected to gain control of the goods a significant period of time before
receiving the relevant services; The cost of the goods is significant relative to the total
expected contract costs; And the Group acquires the goods from a third party, and is not
significantly involved in the production and manufacturing of the goods.
In the service provision segment, the total consideration in certain contracts includes a
variable component and a variable component (such as management fees which are
conditional upon income). Fixed amounts are recognized in a straight line over the period
when the services are provided. Variable amounts are for the period generally in the period
when the relevant services were provided, if they are attributable to the Group’s efforts to
fulfill the performance obligation in that period, and if the method of recognition, as stated
above, reflects the amount which the Group is entitled to receive in consideration of the
provision of services to the customer.

Additionally, in cases where the Group is entitled to receive consideration from the

customer, in an amount which directly corresponds to the value for the customer of the

Group’s performance, which was completed until that date, the Group adopts the practical

expedient prescribed in the standard, and recognizes income in the amount for which the

Group is entitled to submit an invoice.

In the Group’s real estate segment

The Group is required to estimate, with respect to each contract with a customer, whether

it is fulfilling the over time or at a single point in time (upon delivery), in order to determine

the appropriate method for recognition of income.

The Group fulfills the performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time if one of

the following criteria is fulfilled:

A. The customer receives and consumes simultaneously the benefits which are provided
by the Group’s performance, insofar as the Group is the performing entity.

B. The Group’s performance creates or improves a property (for example, work in
progress) which is controlled by the customer, during the creation or improvement
thereof.

C. The Group’s performance does not create an asset with alternative use for the Group,
and the Group has the right to enforceable payment with respect to performance which
was completed until that date.

Income from rent and management fees

Rent from investment property and management fees for the routine operation of
properties are recognized under profit and loss using the straight line method
throughout the lease period. Lease incentives which were provided are recognized as
an inseparable part of the total income from rent throughout the lease period.
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Services
Income is recognized over time in the reporting period when the services were
provided, since the customer receives and consumes simultaneously the benefits
which are provided by the Group’s performance, when the Group provides those
Services.
Sale of inventory of real estate and residential apartments
The Group has reached the conclusion that its sale contracts with customers in the
entrepreneurial real estate segment in Israel, based on regulation the provisions of the
law and the relevant regulations in Israel, and based on legal opinions which were
received, an asset has not been created with an alternative use for the Group, and it
has the right to enforce the fulfillment of the contract. In these circumstances, the
Group recognizes revenue over time. When the aforementioned conditions have not
been met, the revenue is recognized at a single point in time.
The Company recognizes revenues with respect to each contract separately, provided
that the amounts which were received, as at the reporting date, with respect to the
contract, represent 15% or more of the total contract amount. The Group determines
the amount of revenue from each contract in accordance with the transaction price
with each customer separately.
Recognition of revenue from combination transactions
Real estate inventory which is acquired by the Group in a combination transaction in
exchange for the provision of construction services to the seller of the land is
recognized according to its fair value on the date when the terms of the agreement
allow the Group to receive possession of the land, in parallel with the recognition of
the undertaking to provide construction services. In cases where the value of the land
is not reliably measurable, the Group estimates the fair value of the construction
services which are given to the land owner.
In subsequent periods, the aforementioned liability is adjusted in order to reflect the
significant financing component which is represented in the transaction. The
undertaking to provide construction services and real estate inventory are carried to
income and cost of sales, respectively, in accordance with the rate of progress on the
inventory in its entirety.
Measurement of performance progress
The Group determines the rate of progress according to which revenue is recognized
with respect to each sale contract as the rate of progress of the building in its entirety.
The rate of progress was determined in accordance with the ratio between the
construction costs which actually materialized (excluding payments with respect to
land and financing) and the scope of the contract of the developing contractor at base
prices (not including land costs and financing costs).
Method of presentation of income receivable and advance payments from
customers
Income receivable constitutes an asset which is recognized when the Group is entitled
to receive consideration with respect to a real estate property which the Group has
transferred to the customer.
Advance payments from apartment buyers constitute liabilities with respect to
contracts, and represent the consideration which the Group received before it
transferred the real estate property to the customer.
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7.

In the Group’s telecommunications segment
Income due to the provision of telecommunication services, which include mobile services,
internet services, international call services, landline telephony services, reciprocal
connectivity, roaming services, content and value added services, transmission services and
television over internet services, is recorded upon the provision of the services
proportionately until the transaction completion stage, when all of the criteria for the
recognition of revenue have been fulfilled.
The sale of equipment to the customer is performed without a contractual obligation of the
customer to acquire services in a minimum amount for a predefined period. As a result, the
Group considers the equipment transaction as a separate transaction, and recognizes the
revenues from equipment in accordance with the value of the transaction on the date when
the equipment is transferred to the customer. Revenues from services are recognized and
recorded upon the provision of the services.
Incremental costs to obtain contract
Incremental costs to obtain contracts with customers are recognized as assets when it is
considered likely that the Group will recoup those costs. Costs to obtain contracts which
would have materialized regardless of whether or not the contract is obtained are
recognized as an expense upon their materialization (see also section E.3. above).
Costs which have materialized to fulfill a contract with a customer, and which do not fall
under the scope of another standard, are recognized as an asset when they: are directly
attributed to a contract which the Group is able to specifically identify; create or improve
the Group’s resources which will serve to fulfill a performance obligation in the future; and
when the costs are expected to be recouped. In any other case, these costs are recognized
as an expense upon their materialization.
Costs which have been discounted as an asset are depreciated to the statement of income
on a systematic basis which is consistent with the transfer of the goods or services to which
the asset is attributed.
In each reporting period, the Group evaluates whether the asset’s book value, which was
recognized as stated above, exceeds the balance of the consideration which the entity
expects to receive in consideration of the goods or services to which the asset is attributed,
less the costs which are directly attributable to the provision of those goods or services,
which were not recognized as expenses, and if necessary, impairment loss is recognized in
the statement of income.

In the real estate initiation segment, the Group determines the cost attributed to each sale

contract separately in accordance with the following:

A. Land costs (including fees, levies and land financing) - these costs will be attributed
to each agreement in accordance with the value of the unit which is the subject of that
agreement, relative to the value of the project in its entirety. The aforementioned value
is primarily affected by the location of the unit in the building, the designation of the
unit and the area of the unit.

B. Construction costs - in accordance with the size of the unit and the construction cost
per square meter, as arising from the Group’s agreements with its executing
contractors.
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10.

11.

Incremental costs to obtain contracts with customers are recognized as assets when it is
considered likely that the Company will recoup those costs. Accordingly, commissions
which are paid to marketers and agents with respect to the sale of residential apartments
are recognized as an asset upon the signing of the sale contract, and are amortized as selling
expenses in accordance with the rate of progress, for apartments which were sold over time.
Warranty

For the purpose of assessing whether a warranty provides a separate service to the
customer, and therefore constitutes a separate performance obligation, the Group evaluates,
inter alia, the following characteristics: whether the customer has the possibility to
purchase a warranty separately; Whether the warranty is required by law; the length of the
liability coverage period and the nature of the activities which the Group guarantees to
perform under the liability contract.

Within the framework of contracts with customers, the Group provides warranty services
to customers in accordance with the contract, the provisions of the law or the standard
practice in the branch. The warranty services are given in order to guarantee the quality of
work and the fulfillment of the specification which was agreed upon between the parties,
and do not constitute an additional service which is given to the customer. In such cases,
the Group does not identify the warranty as a separate performance obligation, but rather
treats it in accordance with the provisions of 1AS 37, and recognizes a provision for
warranty, according to the estimated cost of the aforementioned services.

Sales with right of recourse

For contracts which allow the customer to return purchased goods, income is recognized
in the amount regarding which it is highly probable that a significant cancellation of the
amount of accumulated income which were recognized will not occur. Therefore, the
amount of recognized income is adjusted with respect to the expected returns, which have
been estimated based on historical data and past experience. Returned goods are only
replaced for new goods. In such cases, a liability for returns, and an asset with respect to
the right to receive back the products, are recognized.

Contractual assets and contractual liabilities

A contractual asset is recognized when the Group has the right to receive consideration
with respect to goods or services which the Group has transferred to the customer, while
this right is conditional upon a different entity than the passage of time, for example, the
Group’s future performance. The contractual assets are classified to the item for receivables
when the rights with respect thereto become unconditional.

Contractual liabilities are recognized when the Group is obligated to transfer goods or
services to the customer, for which it has not received consideration (or when the amount’s
due date has arrived).

Offsetting of contractual assets and contractual liabilities

An asset and liability with respect to the same contract are presented net in the statement
of financial position. However, a contractual asset and liability arising from different
contracts are presented gross in the statement of financial position.
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12.  Primary supplier or agent
When the Group is the primary supplier, it recognizes the revenues according to the gross total
consideration, if the Group is obligated to arrange for another party to provide those goods or
services, then the Group is an agent, and therefore recognizes the revenue according to the net
amount of the commission.
The Group is the primary supplier when it controls the guaranteed goods or service before hey are
transferred to the customer. Indicators showing that the Group controlled the goods or service
before the transfer thereof to the customer include, inter alia, the following: the Group is the main
party responsible for fulfilling the contractual obligations; The Group bears inventory risk before
the goods or services have been transferred to the customer; And the Group has discretion regarding
the determination of prices for the goods or services.
Within the framework of contract projects in which the work is performed through
subcontractors, the Group serves as the primary supplier, while its obligation is to provide
the contract services itself, and therefore the income is recognized in the gross amount of the
consideration.
In the property rental and management segment, the Group provides electricity and
management services for the lessees. In cases where the Group is unable to direct the
transferred service to the customer, and essentially serves as an agent, the revenue is
recognized on a net basis. In other cases, the income is recognized on a gross basis.
13. Recognition of revenue with respect to contracts which were signed following progress on
performance
In the real estate initiation segment, in cases where the Group begins performing actions in
connection with an expected contract before a binding contract has been signed with the customer,
when signing the contract, the Group recognizes the revenue on a cumulative (“catch up™) basis
which reflects the performance obligations which were partially completed or completed as at the
signing date of the agreement.
U. Cost of Sales
1.  Cost of sales in the Group in connection with the provision of communication services primarily
includes end user equipment acquisition costs, payroll and associated expenses, value added
services expenses, royalties expenses, routine licensing fees, expenses with respect to reciprocal
and roaming connections, rental, municipal tax and electricity costs of mobile sites, depreciation
and amortization expenses and maintenance expenses, which are directly associated with the
provision of the services.
2.  Discounts from suppliers - the Group recognizes discounts which are received from its suppliers as
a reduction of the purchase cost.

V. Finance income and expenses

Finance income includes interest income and linkage differentials with respect to financial assets,
dividend income and interest with respect to marketable securities (excluding from associate companies
and joint ventures, from financial assets presented at fair value through profit and loss which do not
constitute a part of the Group’s liquid resources, and excluding dividends which clearly constitute
recoupment of investment), increase in the fair value of financial assets presented at fair value through
profit and loss (which also include income from dividends and interest), which constitute a part of the
Group’s liquid resources, profits from foreign currency differences and hedging instruments which are
recognized in profit and loss, profit from early redemption of debentures, decrease in the fair value of
financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss, and interest income from sales on
credit.

Interest income is recognized upon accrual, using the effective interest method. Income from dividends
is recognized on the date when the Group obtains the right to receive payment. If the dividend was
received with respect to marketable shares, the Group recognizes the dividend income on the ex date.
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Finance income and expenses (Cont.)

Interest income with respect to loans which have characteristics of long term capital investments
to investee companies accounted by the equity method are canceled against the Group’s share
in the (profit) loss of investee companies accounted by the equity method, net.

Finance expenses include interest expenses and linkage differentials on loans which were
received, changes with respect to the value of time in provisions and with respect to deferred
consideration, decrease in the fair value of financial assets presented at fair value through profit
and loss which constitute a part of the Group’s liquid resources, impairment losses of
financial assets (excluding losses with respect to impairment of trade receivables, which are
presented under general and administrative expenses), losses from hedging instruments which
are recognized under profit and loss, increase in the fair value of financial liabilities measured
at fair value through profit and loss, and losses from foreign currency differences. Borrowing
costs which are not capitalized to qualifying assets are applied to the statement of income using
the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets presented at fair value through profit and loss also
include income from dividends and interest.

Profit and loss from foreign currency differences with respect to financial assets and
liabilities and hedging instruments are reported net as finance income or finance expenses,
depending on the fluctuations in the exchange rate, and depending on their position (profit
or loss, net).

The statements of cash flows include the presentation of interest which was received within
the framework of cash flows from investing activities. Interest paid and dividends paid are
presented under cash flows from financing activities Accordingly, borrowing costs
capitalized to qualifying assets are presented together with the interest which was paid
under cash flows from financing activities.

Taxes on income

Taxes on income include current and deferred taxes. Current and deferred taxes are applied to
the statement of income, unless the tax is due to a business combination, or are applied directly
to capital or to other comprehensive income (loss) if they are due to items which are recognized
directly under capital or other comprehensive income (loss).

Current tax is the tax amount which is expected to be paid (or received) on he taxable income
for the year, calculated according to the tax rates which apply under the laws which were enacted
or effectively enacted as at the date of the statement of financial position. Current taxes also
include taxes with respect to previous years.

The group offsets current tax assets and liabilities if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets and liabilities, and if there is an intention to settle current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis, or if the current tax assets and liabilities are settled simultaneously.

A provision with respect to uncertain tax positions, including additional tax expenses and
interest, is recognized when it is more likely than not that the Group will require economic
resources to settle the liability.
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The recognition of deferred taxes applies with respect to temporary differences between the book
value of assets and liabilities for the purpose of financial reporting and their value for tax
purposes. The Group does not recognize deferred taxes with respect to the following temporary
differences: initial recognition of goodwill, initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction which does not constitute a business combination, and which does not affect
accounting profit and profit for tax purposes, and differences due to investment in subsidiaries,
in joint arrangements and in associate companies, if the Group controls the difference reversal
date, and if it is expected that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future, whether by way of
realization of the investment or by way of a dividend distribution with respect to the investment.
The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax implications which will result from the way
in which the Group expects, upon conclusion the reporting period, to repay or settle the book
value of the assets and liabilities. With respect to investment property which is measured using
the fair value model, there is a refutable assumption according to which the book value of the
investment property will be repaid by a sale. Deferred taxes are measured according to the tax
rates which are expected to apply on the date when they are expected to be realized, based on
the laws which were enacted, or effectively reporting date, as at the reporting date.
A deferred tax asset is recognized in the books with respect to transferred losses, tax benefits
and deductible temporary differences, when it is expected that taxable income will arise in the
future, against which it will be possible to use them, in consideration of the current tax losses
which are expected materialize during the tax year when the temporary differences will be used,
and against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are evaluated on each reporting date,
and if the attributed tax benefits are not expected to materialize, they are amortized.
Deferred tax assets which were not recognized are re-evaluated on each reporting date, and are
recognized if the expectation has changed such that taxable income is expected to arise in the
future, against which they can be used.
The group offsets deferred tax assets and liabilities if a legally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets and liabilities, and if they are attributed to the same taxable income by the
same tax authority in the same assessee company, or in different companies, which intend to
settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, or if the deferred tax assets and liabilities
are settled simultaneously.
The Group may be required to pay additional tax in case of dividend distributions by the Group’s
member companies.
This tax addition is not included under deferred taxes, when the policy of the Group’s member
companies is not to cause, in the foreseeable future, a dividend distribution which involves a tax
addition for the receiving company. In cases where an investee company is expected to distribute
dividends from profits due to which the dividend involves a tax addition for the Company, the
Company creates a tax reserve with respect to the tax addition which the Company may be
required to pay with respect to the aforementioned dividend.
Additional taxes on income which are due to dividend distributions by the Group’s member
companies are applied to the statement of income on the date when the liability to pay the
relevant dividend is recognized. Deferred taxes with respect to inter-company transactions in the
consolidated financial statements are tax rate according to tax rate which applies to the buyer
entity.

65



DIC

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2022

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Cont.)

X.

1.

Segmental reporting
Operating segments are reported according to the same basis which is used for the purpose of the internal
reports which are submitted to the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources to the Company’s operating segments, and assessing their performance.

Initial adoption of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations

“Amendment to IAS 37”)

IAS 37 defines an “onerous contract” as a contract in which all unavoidable costs required to fulfill the
contractual obligations exceed the economic benefits which are expected to be received thereunder. The
unavoidable costs under the contract reflect the smallest net cost of leaving it, which is the lower of

either the cost to fulfill the contract, and damages and penalties for not fulfilling it.

The amendment to IAS 37 clarifies the significance of the term “cost to fulfill a contract”. In accordance
with the amendment, the cost of fulfilling a contract is comprised of the costs which are directly

attributable to the contract. Costs directly attributable to the contract include the combination of:

A. Incremental costs to fulfill the contract (such as direct costs with respect to work and materials);
B. Allocation of other costs directly associated with the fulfillment of the contract (such as the
allocation of a proportional part of the depreciation of fixed assets which is used to fulfill the

contract).

The amendment also clarifies that, before recognizing a provision with respect to an onerous contract,
the entity must test for and recognize impairment in respect of any asset which is used in the fulfillment

of the contract, and not only in respect of assets which have been designated to the contract.

The amendment to IAS 37 was applied by the Group beginning on January 1, 2022, retrospectively with
respect to contracts where the Group has not yet fulfilled all the applicable executory obligations on the
date of the amendment’s initial adoption. The initial adoption of the amendment to 1AS 37 did not have

a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

”Amendment to IFRS 3”)

The amendment updates IFRS 3 such that it refers to the conceptual framework of financial reporting
which was published in 2018, for the purpose of determining which acquired assets and assumed
liabilities fulfill the definitions of assets and liabilities. Prior to the amendment, reference was made to

the conceptual framework of financial reporting which was published in 2001.

The amendment also adds to IFRS 3 a demand stipulating that, with respect to events covered under
IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, a buyer will apply the provisions of 1AS 37 in order to determine whether, as at
the acquisition date, there is a present obligation due to past events, or the provisions of IFRIC 21 in
order to determine whether the obligating event which creates an undertaking to pay the fee occurred

until the acquisition date (respectively) instead of the provisions of the conceptual framework.

The amendment also clarifies and adds to IFRS 3 an explicit statement that a buyer may not recognized

contingent assets, as defined in 1AS 37, on the acquisition date.

In accordance with the provisions of the amendment to IFRS 3, the amendment was adopted by the
Group with respect to business combinations whose acquisition dates were in annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2022. The initial adoption of the amendment to IFRS 3 did not have a significant

impact on the Company’s financial statements.

” Amendment to IFRS 9”)

The amendment to IFRS 9 determines which grounds are included in the 10% test for the purpose of
writing off a financial liability, as stated in Note 2.C.3.B. above. In accordance with the provisions of
the amendment to IFRS 9, costs and fees which are paid to third parties (and not to the lender) are not
included in the 10% test. The amendment to IFRS 9 has been adopted since January 1, 2022. The initial
adoption of the amendment to IFRS 9 did not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial

statements.
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Z. New standards and amendments to existing standards which have not yet entered into
effect and which the Group has chosen not to adopt early

1.

Amendment to International Accounting Standard (1AS) 1, Presentation of Financial
Statements — “classification of liabilities as current or non-current liabilities” and
“non-current liabilities with financial covenants” (hereinafter, in this section: the
“Amendments to 1AS 1%)

The amendments to IAS 1 clarify the guidelines regarding the classification of liabilities

as current or non-current in the statement of financial position. The amendments include

the following clarifications, inter alia:

(A) A liability will be classified as non-current liability if the entity has a substantive
right, at the end of the reporting period, to defer the settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

(B) The right to defer the settlement of a liability with respect to a loan agreement for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period is sometimes dependent on the
entity’s fulfillment of the conditions which were determined in the loan agreement
(hereinafter: “Financial Covenants™). The classification of a liability with respect to
a loan agreement, as stated above, as a current or non-current liability, will be
determined based only on the financial covenants which the entity was required to
fulfill at the end of the reporting period, or before it. Financial covenants which the
entity is required to fulfill after the end of the reporting period will not be taken into
account in this determination.

(C) Insofar as a liability with respect to a loan agreement, for which the entity is required
to fulfill financial covenants during the 12 months after the end of the reporting
period, was classified as a non-current liability, disclosure will be included in the
notes in a manner which allows the users of the financial statements to understand
the risk that the repayment of the liability could be demanded during the 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. As part of the above, disclosure will be provided
regarding the conditions wh